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BROOKS ESTATES

SUMMARY STATEMENT

1. The Facility

Brooks Estates
209 Roberts Road
Jenkins Township
Pittston, PA 18640

2. The Provider
UMH PA Corp. (Brooks Estates division)
209 Roberts Road
Jenkins Township
Pittston, PA 18640

3. To Discuss Admissions, Call or Write

Lindsey Maslar, Campus Life Coordinator of Brooks Estates
Brooks Estates

209 Roberts Road

Jenkins Township

Pittston, PA 18640

(570) 655-2891 (Extension 230)

4. Description of the Facility:

Brooks Estates is situated on 35 acres of land located adjacent to its’ associated health care
facilities on the Wesley Village Retirement Community campus in Jenkins Township, Luzerne County,
Pennsylvania. The campus is located almost equidistant between Scranton and Wilkes-Barre,
Pennsylvania in the Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Metropolitan Statistical Area. Brooks Estates consists of
103 dwelling units. The buildings (cottage construction design) include freestanding two-unit and
three-unit single story structures. A dedicated community and wellness center has been constructed
which is conveniently located at Brooks Estates. To meet the continuing needs of our residents, the
Wesley Village Retirement Community campus also provides independent apartment
accommodations, licensed personal care services and/or skilled nursing services in separate facilities
located on the campus.

5. Age Requirements:

Brooks Estates is designed for, and accepts, qualified applicants who have attained the age of 65,
with a lesser age permitted for spouses.




6. Religious Affiliation:

Brooks Estates is an operating division of the not-for-profit UMH PA Corp. (the “Methodist
Homes”), a Pennsylvania based corporation. The Methodist Homes has affiliations with 8 other not-
for-profit corporations that comprise the United Methodist Homes organization {collectively, the
“United Methodist Homes"). In prior years, there was one additional affiliate — Grand Care Center;
however, this corporation’s dissolution was finalized in 2015. The United Methodist Homes originally
evolved from the mission and ministry of the Wyoming Annual Conference of the United Methodist
Church (“The Wyoming Conference™), whose operations were discontinued during 2010, The
Methodist Homes is qualified for exemption from federal taxes under Section 501 (c) (3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and now maintains its public charity status under Section 509(a)(3)as a
supporting organization of UMH NY Corp., an affiliated not-for-profit corporation.

The United Methodist Homes has entered into a Statement of Relationship (“Statement™) with
the Susqueharma Conference of the United Methodist Church (“Susquehanna Conference™), which
specifies that there are no legal, financial, operational, ownership or control relationships between the
United Methodist Homes and the Susquehanna Conference. The Statement of Relationship does
provide that the United Methodist Homes will remain intentionally faithful to Christian values and
principles, and will maintain policies promoting equal opportunity and non-discrimination. The
Statement provides for an invitation to the Bishop, or a designee, to attend all Board of Directors
meetings, with voice but without membership and vote, provides for on-going communication between
the United Methodist Homes, and permits the use of the name “United Methodist Homes” as well as
the use of the United Methodist Church cross and flame symbol. The United Methodist Homes bylaws
further provide that at least sixty percent (60%) of the Board of Directors be members of the United
Methodist Church.

7. Current Resident Population:

As of April 2017, the 103 units available for occupancy were either occupied, or committed for
immanent occupancy under signed occupancy commitments.

8. Brief Summary Of Entrance and Monthly Fees:

Monthly Fees and Advance Fees for new admissions to the community, effective January 1,
2017 are as follows:

Monthly Fees (Range)
Single Double
Plan Occupancy Occupancy Advance
Fee

Monthly Lease/Rental
Plan,

Cottage unit $1,710t0 $1,810 $ 1,770 to $1,870 N/A
Advance Fee Plan,

Cottage unit $1,160t0 81,260 $1,220t0 $1,320  $ 125,000

A complete detail of Monthly Fees and Advance Fees is attached in Exhibit A.
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RESPONSES TO SECTION 7 of PA ACT 82

Note: Item numbers correspond to paragraphs of the Continuing Care Provider Registration and
Disclosure Act (PA Act 82, Section 7} which sets the requirements for this disclosure statement.

1. The Facility:

Brooks Estates is an operating division of the Methodist Homes. Brooks Estates is located on the
Wesley Village Retirement Community campus, 209 Roberts Road in Pittston, Jenkins Township, and
Luzerne County, Pennsylvania. The Methodist Homes is a not-for-profit Pennsylvania corporation
organized in 1951. The Methodist Homes is qualified for exemption from federal taxes under Section
501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Brooks Estates provides senior living services in a cottage
unit setting at this location. Other services available on the Wesley Village Retirement Community
campus include independent apartment accommodations, licensed personal care services and licensed
skilled nursing services.

2. Board of Directors, Management and Key Personnel:

Board of Directors (the “Board”):

A common Board of Directors (the “Board”) governs the Methodist Homes and its related
brother-sister not-for-profit corporations comprising the United Methodist Homes, except for the
United Methodist Homes Foundation (the “Methodist Homes Foundation™) which is governed by a
minimum of nine trustees comprised of the voting members of the Executive/Finance/Audit
Committee of the Board.

The common Board, when all Board positions are filled, is comprised of 27 elected members
divided into classes of nine; nine members are elected annually, each to three-year terms. Elected
Board members may serve no more than two consecutive full terms,

Honorary members of the Board are elected annually based upon the nomination of the Board’s
Director’s Committee. Honorary members are chosen from former members of the Board who are
unable to serve as Board members and have all rights and privileges of a Board member except for the
right to make or second a motion or to vote. The common Board is responsible for all actions of the
United Methodist Homes, including the Methodist Homes and its Brooks Estates division.

The Local Development Committee (the “LDC”):

By resolution of the Board, the Wesley Village Local Development Committee (the "LDC") was
established in 1976. The Board established, approved and empowered the LDC as a standing
committee of the Board. The LDC serves to approve and recommend The Wesley Village annual
budget to the Board, offer guidance and support to the management team and to the Board and acts as a
community liaison for The Wesley Village Retirement Community.

The members of the Board who are residents of Pennsylvania are automatically appointed as ex-
officio members of the LDC with full membership and voting rights.

The members of the Board, their profession or business affiliation and the expiration of their
term are as follows:
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METHODIST HOMES FOR THE AGING OF THE WYOMING CONFERENCE
AND ALL OF ITS AFFILIATED CORPORATIONS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Officers:
Sharon (Calli} Berg, Chairperson

William Lewis, Treasurer

John R. Crounse, Vice Chairperson (Honorary)
James Corselius (H), Secretary

Edwin Rogers, Asst. Treasurer

Maryann Johnson, Assistant Secretary

Lo 2 wName s 5 T Prafessitt b S AUGress T TEL ] "t b, STl ation -
Elected Members:
Melissa Drabo Audiologist 21 Terrace Drive May 2017
Binghamton, NY 13905
Sarah Hopkins Lecturer, 902 Anna Drive May 2017
Binghamton Endicott, NY 13760
University
Maryann K. Johnson Retired 2088 E. Hamton Road May 2017
Binghamton, NY 13903
William D. Lewis Retired 133 Kingswood Drive May 2017
Dallas, PA 18612
Rosanne Mulligan Instructor, Ridley- 18 Dorothy Road May 2017
Lowell Business &  Apalachin, NY 13731
Technical Institute
A. Wayne Trivelpiece Retired 1251 Gravel Pond Road May 2017
Clarks Summit, PA 18411
Vacant May 2017
Vacant May 2017
Vacant May 2017
3 %l Namie, i *."% . CPPofeasion: | ) | ouAOdress. . Ton e *_ 7 Tl E4piration
Elected Members:
John G. Carling Retired 201 Beechwood Drive May 2018
Roaring Brooks Twp., PA 18444
Joseph Coons Retired 7 Columbia Ave. May 2018
Binghamton, NY 13903
Sharron Lewis Retired RN 133 Kingswood Drive May 2018
Dallas, PA 18612
Elaine Miller Director, Housing 13 Spring Street May 2018
& Community Binghamton, NY 13903
Development
Dianne Posegate Asst. Dean/Director 1325 So. Webster Avenue May 2018
Panuska College of  Scranton, PA 18505
Professional Studies
Blenda Smith Nurse Practitioner, 133 Helen Street May 2018
PhD Binghamton, NY 13905
Betty Stanton Retired 40 East Street May 2018
Binghamton, NY 13904
Kenneth Summers, Jr. Retired 418 Firth Street May 2018
Endicott, NY 13760
Vacant May 2018




Sn e N T
Elected Members:

Sharon Berg Retired 106 Pollock Drive May 2019
Pittston, PA 18640
Christina Boyd VP, Community 328 Bunn Hill Road May 2019

Relations, United Vestal, NY 13850
Health Services

Carol Coleman (Rev.) Pastor, United 56 Conyngham Street May 2019
Methodist Church Ashley, PA 18706
John Crounse Retired 714 Griffin Pond Road May 2019
S. Abington Twp., PA 18411
Jeffrey Culver Owner, Parlor City PO Box 885 May 2019
Paper Box Binghamton, NY 13902
Company
Lisa Lee Partper, North Point 816 Buffalo Street May 2019
Technology, LLC Endicott, NY 13760
Philip Reid CPA/Accountant 145 Honey Bee Lane May 2019
Monroe Twp., PA 18618
Edwin Rogers Editor, Scranton 2282 Maplewood Road May 2019
Times Jefferson Twp., PA 18436
Vacant May 2019

Management and Key Personnel:

The day-to-day management of operations at Brooks Estates is performed by management and
key personnel located at Brooks Estates in conjunction with the Executive Director of the Wesley
Village Retirement Community, and with the key personnel of the UMH Management Services Corp.
(“Management Services”). The management team at Brooks Estates is responsible for carrying out the
policies established by the LDC and the Board of the Methodist Homes.

The following individuals are responsible for the management of Brooks Estates on a daily basis:
Brooks Estates:

Lindsey Maslar - Brooks Estates. Mrs. Maslar joined the Wesley Village Retirement
Community in 2009. Subsequent to serving in various administrative positions, Lindsey
assumed the position of Campus Life Coordinator of Brooks Estates in 2014,

Wesley Village Retirement Community:

Danielle Janeski, B.S., N.H.A. — Executive Director of PA Campuses. Ms. Janeski joined
the Wesley Village Retirement Community in 2000. She holds a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Human Development and Family Studies with a minor in Gerontology and is a
licensed nursing home administrator in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. As Executive
Director of PA Campuses, Ms. Janeski is responsible for the management of all day-to-day
clinical and non-clinical operating activities at the Wesley Village Retirement Community
and provides oversight to the personnel of Brooks Estates.




Management Services:

The Methodist Homes has centralized the major portion of its corporate level administration,
accounting, employee benefits, insurance, clinical quality assurance, public relations and marketing,
construction management and information technology services in Management Services. Program
administration and operations and initial record keeping functions are performed at the individual
facility level.

The major functions of Management Services are as follows:
¢ Corporate administration and coordination

Major contract negotiations, including therapies, pharmacy and dietary
Management information services, including financial accounting, hardware and
software and personal computer support for facility personal computers and
networks

* Financial accounting and record keeping, including billing, accounts receivable,
payroll, accounts payable, cash receipts, general ledger, financial reporting, fixed
asset accounting and investment management and accounting

¢ Public relations

¢ Construction management

¢ Clinical management and quality assurance
e Insurance

¢ Employee benefits

[ ]

L ]

An administrative and consulting services agreement has been established between Management
Services and the Methodist Homes. Fees associated with the agreement are established to approximate
cost without any significant profit or mark-up. A separate administrative and consulting services
agreement has been established between Management Services and each of the other United Methodist
Homes corporations so that fees in aggregate to all the United Methodist Homes corporations
approximate the operating and capital costs of Management Services operations without any
significant mark-up.

Key Management Services personnel directly involved with the operation of Brooks Estates, the
Wesley Village Retirement Community and the Methodist Homes are:

Brian J. Picchini, BS, C.P.A — President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Picchini joined
the United Methodist homes in 2009 as a member of the finance department, was promoted
to Chief Financial Officer in 2010 and subsequently appointed President/CEO in 2012. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration/accounting and is licensed and
certified as a public accountant in Pennsylvania. Mr. Picchini is responsible to the Board
for administration and management of all operations of the United Methodist Homes. Mr.
Picchini also assumed the role of Chief Operating Officer effective March 1, 2016. In this
role Mr. Picchini is responsible for the management of all day-to-day clinical and non-
clinical operating activities of the United Methodist Homes and provides oversight to the
personnel of the entire organization.

3. Description of Affiliations:

(A.) Information with regard to each Board member’s current profession has been provided in
item two above. While many members have experience in operating either their own business or
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managing business affairs of others, certain members are members of the ministry and others have had
very limited business experience. Individuals employed as managers of Brooks Estates have had
significant experience in the business world, and in long-term care and continuing care operations in
particular.

(B.) No Board members or members of the management staff have a 10 percent or greater
interest in the facility.

(C.) No directors, officers or management employees of the United Methodist Homes or Brooks
Estates have ever been convicted of a felony or have been involved in any manner in charges of fraud,
embezzlement, fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property. None of the above are subject
to currently effective injunctive or restrictive orders nor have any of them had licenses suspended or
revoked relating to any business activity or affecting the operation of any foster care facility, nursing
home, retirement home, home for the aged, or any facility registered with the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or any other state.

4. Facility Affiliations:

Brooks Estates is an operating division of the UMH PA Corp. (the “Methodist Homes™). The
Methodist Homes has affiliations with 8 other not-for profit corporations that comprise the United
Methodist Homes organization (collectively, the “United Methodist Homes™). In prior years, there was
one additional affiliate — Grand Care Center; however, this corporation’s dissolution was finalized in
2015. The United Methodist Homes originally evolved from the mission and ministry of the Wyoming
Annual Conference of the United Methodist Church (“The Wyoming Conference”), whose operations
were discontinued during 2010. The Methodist Homes is qualified for exemption from federal taxes
under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and now maintains it public charity status
under Section 509(a)(3) as a supporting organization of UMH NY Corp., an affiliated not-for-profit
corporation.

The United Methodist Homes have entered into a Statement of Relationship (“Statement”) with
the Susquehanna Conference of the United Methodist Church (“Susquehanna Conference™), which
specifies that there are no legal, financial, operational, ownership or control relationships between the
United Methodist Homes and the Susquehanna Conference. The Statement of Relationship does
provide that the United Methodist Homes will remain intentionally faithful to Christian values and
principles, and will maintain policies promoting equal opportunity and non-discrimination. The
Statement provides for an invitation to the Bishop, or a designee, to attend all Board of Directors
meetings, with voice but without membership and vote, provides for on-going communication between
the United Methodist Homes, and permits the use of the name “United Methodist Homes” as well as
the use of the United Methodist Church cross and flame symbol. The United Methodist Homes bylaws
further provide that at least sixty percent (60%) of the Board of Directors be members of the United
Methodist Church.

A separate schedule is included as Appendix B to disclose the United Methodist Home’s
affiliates, all of which are not-for-profit corporations under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue
Code.




3. Facility Description:

Brooks Estates occupies approximately 35 acres of land and is located adjacent to its’
associated health care facilities on the Wesley Village Retirement Community campus (approximately
58 acres of land in total) in Jenkins Township, Luzerne County, Pennsylvania. Brooks Estates is
located almost equidistant between Scranton and Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania in the Scranton/Wilkes-
Barre Metropolitan Statistical Area. The buildings (cottage construction design) include freestanding
two-unit and three-unit single story structures. A dedicated community and wellness center has been
constructed which is conveniently located at Brooks Estates. To meet the continuing needs of our
residents, the Wesley Village Retirement Community campus also provides independent apartment
accommodations, licensed personal care services and licensed skilled nursing services.

6. Services Included in Basic Contract:

Individuals entering Brooks Estates have the option of either a Monthly Lease/Rental Plan or an
Advance Fee Plan.

Services included in the basic contract:

Use of living unit

Complete kitchens including stove, refrigerator, microwave, dishwasher and garbage
disposal

Other appliances including washer/dryer, garage door opener

Wall-to wall carpeting and draperies

Smoke detectors

Housekeeping service, monthly and annual cleaning, when chosen by the resident
All utilities (excluding telephone and cable television services) including water,
electricity, heat and air conditioning with private heat and air control

Recreational and social activities

Refuse collection

Case management consultation

Routine maintenance and repairs, including grounds

Use of exclusive community and wellness center including entertainment area, fully
equipped fitness room and cinema room

Religious services, chaplaincy and pastoral care

24 hour emergency response call service

Parking

Services available at additional cost:

Beauty and barber shop services
Physical, occupational or speech therapy
Physician services
Dentistry
Podiatry
Optometry
X-ray services
Laboratory services
10




Medical supplies

Overnight accommodations for guests
Resident meals

Guest meals

Housekeeping, additional services
Nursing care

Personal care or assisted living

Brooks Estates will make every effort to accommodate services not included in the basic contract
for an additional charge. Brooks Estates does not undertake to provide health care of any nature under
this Agreement and therefore will not be liable to any health care provider for services rendered to a
Resident. If a resident of Brooks Estates becomes unable to properly maintain their living
accommodations either because of mental or physical disability, incapacity, incompetence, or medical
reasons of whatever nature, and the resident is in need of occupancy in either the personal care or
skilled nursing units of the Wesley Village Retirement Community, the Community does give priority
admission status to the resident in assigning the next available personal care or skilled nursing bed to
the resident.

7. Description of Fees and Charges:

Brooks Estates has established a lease/rental plan and an Advance fee plan as options to
proposed residents with regards to services provided in the Brooks Estates independent senior living
cottage units.

The lease/rental plan requires a one-year renewable lease arrangement with a monthly rent and
no Advance Fee,

Individuals selecting the Advance fee plan require a one-time Advance Fee, including a health
care reserve, a 75% refundable entrance fee and payment of a monthly fee. The Advance Fee plan
requires a down payment of 10% at the time of signing a resident contract and 90% upon occupancy of
the unit. Both the 10% amount at signing and the 90% amount prior to occupancy are placed in an
escrow account with a bank escrow agent until the resident occupies the unit, at which time the
Advance Fee will be withdrawn and transferred to Brooks Estates. In order to provide operating
reserves, Brooks Estates will place both the health care reserve and the entire entrance fee in Board
restricted accounts. Withdrawals will be made from the health care reserve account for qualified
inpatient, institutional health care expenditures when made by residents. The entrance fee portion of
the Advance Fee is 25% non-refundable on a pro-rata basis over a 5-year period according to the
number of days an individual has resided in the facility. Withdrawals from the Board restricted
entrance fee account for the 25% non-refundable portion may be made when earned by Brooks Estates
under the terms of the resident contract. The 75% refundable portion of the Advance Fee will be
retained in the Board restricted account until a refund is required. Monthly fees and fees for services
not included in the basic agreement may be adjusted from time to time as the cost of providing these
services change due to increases in the cost of labor, energy costs, payment in lieu-of taxes, other
operating costs and/or lower earnings on investments resulting in decreased operating income.

Brooks Estates will provide 30 days written notice of any increases in rents or fees. Changes in

rates may also occur due to single versus double occupancy. Under ordinary circumstances, these
adjustments are announced on December 1 and become effective January 1.
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8. Description of Reserve Funding and Security:

Health care reserves and entrance fees established by residents under the Advance Fee contract
are held in trust for the benefit of the applicable resident. Withdrawals from health care reserves will
be made for health care expenditures when incurred. Withdrawals from the 25% non-refundable
portion of the entrance fee may be made when earned under terms of the contract. The 75% refundable
portion of the entrance fee is held in reserve at all times to provide for refunds when required.

Health care reserves and entrance fee reserves will be used to comply with the reserve
requirements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Continuing Care Provider Registration and
Disclosure Act and as disclosed in the annual audited financial statements prepared and attached as an
exhibit to this disclosure statement. No other specific provisions have been made to provide reserve
funding other than through the operations of Brooks Estates.

Health care reserves and entrance fee reserves will be invested based upon investment policies
adopted by the Board to protect and conserve principal. Investment income earned on the accounts
may be transferred to the general cash account for support of operations.

9. Certified Financial Statements of the Provider:

The audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 are attached as Appendix
C. The audit of the United Methodist Homes Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2016 was performed by the certified public accounting firm of Baker Tilly Virchow
Krause, LLP, and the financial statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Information specific to Brooks Estates may be found in the supplemental
information section of the audit report on pages 42 through 49. The material contained in these audited
financial statements may be technical in nature. Anyone having questions regarding these statements
may contact the Campus Life Coordinator of Brooks Estates or their personal financial advisor.

10. Resident Agreement — The applicable statement(s) below should be checked:

A Brooks Estates Resident Agreement is attached.
¥ No Resident Agreement is attached because:

A copy of the Resident Agreement was omitted as no changes were made since the prior filing.

11. Pro-Forma Financial Statements of the Provider:
Complete pro-forma statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
are attached as Appendix D to this disclosure statement.
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12. Narrative on Material Differences (Pro-Forma Statement of Operations for the Year Ended

December 31, 2016 versus December 31, 2016 Audited Financial Statements):

Reference should be made to the Pro-forma Statement of Operations, Departmental Summary for the
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 contained in Appendix D while reviewing this section of the
disclosure statement.

Operating income (loss) before change in fair value of derivative financial instrument:

The Brooks Estates project considers the most appropriate measure of financial performance to be
the project’s operating income (loss) before change in fair value of derivative financial instrument,
An explanation of the change in the fair value of the project’s derivative financial instrument (which

is not budgeted by the project), is presented in a following section.

The project’s operating income before the change in fair value of derivative financial instrument
equaled $1,017,624 which differed from the pro-forma budgeted operating income before change in
fair value of derivative financial instrument of $400,413, a positive variance of $617,211. The
difference is comprised of unrestricted revenues, gains and other support being $566,305 more than

the 2016 budget and operating expenses being $50,906 less than the 2016 budget.
Unrestricted revenues, gains and other support:

Total unrestricted revenues, gains and other support were over the 2016 budget by $566,305. The
significant factor causing the increase was unrealized gains (an increase in the underlying market
value of securities held as reserves by Brooks Estates) of $487,972. Brooks Estates does not budget
for changes in the market value of securities held in reserve by the project (consistent with prior
years). A portion of reserves held by Brooks Estates are invested in equity mutual funds and
corporate bonds, the values of which are subject to market fluctuation. Net resident service revenues
added to the good performance of unrealized gain (loss) compared to the 2016 budget by $45,973.

This increase is mainly due to the amortization of entrance fees. This amortization relates to the 25%
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non-refundable portion of the Advance Fee plan which is included in revenue on a pro-rata basis over

a 5-year pertod according to the number of days an individual has resided in the facility.
Operating expenses:

Both positive and negative variances from budget expectations were displayed by the various
departments comprising the project. When aggregated, the project’s net operating expenses were less
than budget by $50,906. Explanations for some of the more significant variances from budget

expectations are as follows:

Plant operations costs were less than the original budget by $82,674. Most of the negative
variance stems from the department experiencing less costs than anticipated in its salaries and
benefits costs. The favorable cost differential is primarily attributed to lower than expected hours
(and thus salaries and benefits) for plant operations. Brooks Estates budgeted 5.40 full-time
equivalents for plant operations but actually used 3.08 full-time equivalents — a favorable variance of
2.32. This can be attributed to open positions that the plant operations department was not able to fill
for the majority of the year. Brooks Estates has since filled these positions. Additionally, utilities
expense (mainly gas) had a favorable variance of $16,650. This stems from the need for less gas

heating due to the higher than normal temperatures throughout the year.

General and administrative costs were more than the original budget by $20,423. Most of the
negative variance stems from the project experiencing higher costs than budgeted for payroll taxes
and employee benefits. The United Methodist Homes, including Brooks Estates, is self-insured for
employee health insurance. Therefore, Brooks Estates records the actual medical expenses and not a
predictable insurance premium. As a result, any large, unexpected medical expense can cause a
significant variance in the payroll taxes and employee benefits line item — which was the case in
2016. Additionally, insurance expense contributed to general and administrative costs being over

budget. The negative variance stems from the 2016 budget being finalized prior to receiving the final
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insurance premium numbers, and the actual premiums ended up being higher than expected. An

adjustment has been made to the increase the budget for insurance expense in 2017.
Change in Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instrument:

A “Change in Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instrument” is the terminology used to describe
changes in the market value associated with interest rate swap agreements (“SWAPs”) negotiated
between the United Methodist Homes (including Brooks Estates) and a bank counterparty. For a full
description of interest rate swap agreements, see footnote 6, Long-Term Debt, in the United
Methodist Homes Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 -
included as Attachment C. Since changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are not
considered part of operating revenues or expenses, and are of a non-cash nature, management does
not consider it appropriate to budget these transactions. Based on information supplied by the
counterparty to SWAP arrangements, Brooks Estates would have paid $183,476 and $183,904 on
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, to terminate SWAP agreements. Based on the foregoing
valuations and terminating payment, the change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
included in the Brooks Estate’s statetnent of operations was ($428) in 2016, which as previously

stated, represents an unbudgeted (non-cash) expense item.
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BROOKS ESTATES

Appendix A
Monthly Fees and Advance Fees Effective January 1, 2016 and 2017
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BROOKS ESTATES
Monthly Fees and Advance Fees
Effective January 1, 2016 and 2017

The resident Advance Fee structure under the entrance fee plan is presented below:

2016 2017
Advance Fee:
Advance Fee § 125,000 $ 125,000
Health Care Reserve 4,000 4,000
Total Entrance Fee $ 121,000 $ 121,000
Entrance Fee Portion:
Non-refundable portion ( 25% )} $ 30,250 $ 30,250
Refundable portion { 75% ) 90,750 90,750
Total Entrance Fee $ 121,000 $ 121,000

The Monthly Rental Charges for the variocus Phases of the project under both the entrance fee
plan and the lease/rental pian are as follows for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016:

Phase |

I3
=4
hrd
=2
Lt
=
f

|
|

Entrace Fee Plan:
Single or Double Occupancy:
End Unit $ 1,025 $ 1,050
Lease/Rantal Fee Plan:
Single Qccupancy”
End Unit 1,575 1,600
Middle Unit 1,475 1,500
Double Occupancy.
End Unit 1.575 1,600

Phase [l

Entrace Fee Plan:
Single Cccupancy.
End Unit 1,125 1,150
Double Occupancy:
End Unit 1,185 1,210
Lease/Rental Fee Plan:
Single Occupancy:
End Unlt 1,675 1,700
Middle Unit 1,575 1.600




N
(=]
g
1=
Il
=4
hry
—t

Phases lll and IV

Entrance Fee Plan:

Single Occupancy:
End Unit $ 1,185 $ 1,210
Middle Unit 1,085 1,110
Double Occupancy”
End Unit 1,245 1,270
Middle Unit 1,145 1,170
Lease/Rantai Fea Plan:
Singte Occupancy-
End Unit 1.735 1,760
Middle Unit 1,635 1,660
Double Occupancy:
End Unit 1,795 1.820

PhaseV and All Subseguent Turnover Units {Effective 11/2014)

Entrance Fee Plan;
Single Occupancy'

End Unit $ 1,235 $ 1,260
Middle Unlt 1.135 1,180
Double Occupancy:.
End Unit 1,295 1,320
Middle Unit 1,195 1,220
Lease/Rental Fee Plan:
Single Occupancy:
End Unit 1,785 1,810
Middle Unit 1,685 1,710
Double Occupancy:
End Unit 1,845 1,870

Middle Unit 1,745 1,770




BROOKS ESTATES
Appendix B
United Methodist Homes and its Affiliates
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BAKER TILLY

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors
United Methodist Homes

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of United Methodist Homes,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly. we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion,

- —— -

BAKER TILLY 1
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of United Methodist Homes as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and
the results of their operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting princ!ples generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The consolidating and combining information on pages 27 to 53 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial position, results of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows of the individual entities or divisions and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from, and related directly to, the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to
the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures, in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

buk Tl Yloihomfi sy 2

Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania
April 28, 2017
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United Methodist Homes

Consolidated Statement of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Unrestricted Revenues, Gains, and Other Support
Net resident service revenues $

Other operating revenues
Unrestricted contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

Investment income

Tofal unrestricted revenues, gains, and other support

Expenses
Nursing
Dietary

Housekeeping

Laundry

Social services, activities, and instruction

Plant operations
General and administrative

Provision for doubtful collections

Total expenses excluding depreciation, amortization,

interest, and change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments

Operating income before depreciation, amortization,

Depreciation
Amortization

Interest

Change in Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instruments

Total

interest, and change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments

Operating income {loss) from continuing operations

Net Assets Released from Restrictions for

Purchase of Property and Equipment

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets from

Net Income from Discontinued Operations

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets $

continuing operations

2016 2015
59,462,275 $§ 57,096,669
462,955 355,259
48,123 287,547
1.020,074 1,004,838
3,334,857 208,488
64,328,284 58,952,801
27,933,899 26,911,639
7,813,480 7,846,776
2,058,102 2,035,822
751,147 749,802
2,059,314 2,306,687
5,231,618 5,073.777
10,299,068 9,809,345
124,108 18,249
56,270,736 54,752,097
8,057,548 4,200,704
5,622,268 4,458,166
29,799 59,439
1,461,081 984,525
66,880 336,832
7,180,028 5,838,962
877,520 {1,638,258)
223,616 225,809
1,101,136 (1,412,449)
111,239 -
1,212,376 $  (1,412,449)

See nofes to consolidated financial statements
4



United Methodist Homes
Consclidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
Unrestricted Net Assets
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations $ 877.520 $ (1.638.258)
Net assets released from restrictions used for
purchase of property and equipment 223,616 225,809
(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets from
continuing operations 1,101,136 (1.412,449)
Net income from discontinued operations 111,239 -
Increase {decrease) in unrestricted net assets 1,212,375 (1,412,449)
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Contributions 258,552 292,043
Income distributions from perpetual trusts 957,548 955,215
Net assets released from restrictions:
Operations (52,554) (37.858)
Resident support (967.520) (966,980)
Purchase of property and equipment (223,616) (225,809)
Investment income 2,764 831
Net unrealized loss on investments - (1,185)
(Decrease) increase in temporarily restricted
net assets (24,826) 16,257
Increase (Decrease) in Permanently Restricted Net Assets
Valuation gain (loss), beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 119,269 (973,880)
Increase (decrease) in net assets 1,306,818 (2,370,072)
Net Assets, Beginning 79,062,223 81,432,295
Net Assets, Ending $ 80,369,041 $ 79,062,223

See notes to consolidated financial statements
5



United Methodist Homes

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets $

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Provision for doubtful collections
Proceeds from nonrefundable portion of entrance fees
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Amortization of entrance fees
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments
Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Valuation loss (gain), beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Contributions and income distributions from

perpetual trusts restricted for long-term purposes
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts and other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Accounts payable, trade

Estimated third-party payor settlements

Accrued expenses

Resident trust funds

Other liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net purchases of assets whose use is limited
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

2016 2015

1,306,818 $  (2.370,072)
124,108 18,249
181,500 138,750
20,102 53,609
(117,225) (103,984)
5,652,067 4,517,605
68,239 67,558
66,880 336,832
(2,389,015) 605,541
(119,269) 973,880
24,826 (16,257)
(1,096,555) (504,204)
(12,417) 325,982
{2.228) (52,734)
348,551 (118.,537)
(102,962) 53,876
162,824 347,508
(3.788) (252)
(637,720) (39,116)
2,167,918 6,604,396
3,474,736 4,234,324
(3.151,258) (2,578,693)
(6,437,641) (14,644,376)
3,859 5,247
(9.585,040) (17,217,822)

See notes to consolidated financial statements
6



United Methodist Homes

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment of long-term debt $ (1,203,000) $ (1,023,001)
Issuance of debt 6.681,454 12,758,302
Decrease in split-interest obligations payable (47,717) {63,493)
Proceeds from refundable portion of entrance fees 60,500 416,250
Refunds of refundable entrance fees (351,000) (330,000)
Contributions and income distributions from
perpetual trusts restricted for long-term purposes (24,826) 16,257
Net cash provided by financing activities 5,115,411 11,774,315
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (994,893) (1.209,183)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 3,803,300 5,012,483
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 2808407 $ 3,803,300
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest paid S 1364315 § 872,196
Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Accounts payable, construction $ - $ 732,565

See notes to consolidated financial statements
7




United Methodist Homes

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenits
December 31, 2016 and 2015

1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation

UMH NY Corp., formerly The Methodist Homes for the Aging of the Wyoming Conference in
the State of New York, is a not-for-profit corporation that provides residential housing and
health services to the elderly. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
UMH NY Corp. and controlled entities. The following is a brief description of each of the
controlled entities:

* UMH PA Corp. is a not-for-profit corporation that provides residential housing and
health and nursing services to the elderly.

¢ UMH Management Services Corp. is a not-for-profit corporation that renders
management, negotiation, technical, advisory, and support services to all related
entities.

* United Methodist Homes Foundation (the “Foundation®) is a trust that administers
and raises charitable funds to support all related entities.

¢« UMH JGJ Corp. is a not-for-profit corporation that provides nursing services to the
elderly.

* UMH ECM Corp. is a not-for-profit corporation that provides nursing services to the
elderly.

¢ The Grace View Manor Nursing Home Corporation (“Grace View Nursing") is a
not-for-profit corporation that provided nursing services to the elderly through
December 31, 2010. On December 31, 2010, Grace View Nursing's nursing facility
and related assets were sold to an unrelated third party (Note 14),

The board members of UMH NY Corp. are required to be the same board members of UMH
PA Corp., UMH Management Services Corp., UMH JGJ Corp., UMH ECM Corp., and Grace
View Nursing. The Executive/Finance/Audit Committee members of UMH NY Corp. are the
trustees of the Foundation.

Collectively, the consolidated entities do business as, and represent the accounts of, United
Methodist Homes (the “Homes"). All significant intercorporate transactions and balances
have been eliminated.

The Homes' primary operations are located in Binghamton and Johnson City, New York and
Pittston, Pennsylvania. Its primary service areas include Binghamton and Johnson City, New
York and Scranton/Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania and their surrounding communities.



United Methodist Homes

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid debt instruments purchased
with original maturities of three months or less, excluding assets whose use is limited.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are reported at net realizable value. Accounts are written off when they
are determined to be uncollectible based upon management’'s assessment of individual
accounts. The allowance for doubtful collections is estimated based upon a periodic review
of individual accounts and application of expected collection percentages established by
management.

Assets Whose Use is Limited

Assets whose use is limited include assets set aside by the board of directors for future
capital improvements and future operating costs, over which the board retains control and
may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes; assets designated by the board
of directors to meet the statutory minimum liquid reserve requirement in Section ¢ of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Continuing Care Provider Registration and Disclosure Act
("Act 82"). assets held by a bond trustee under trust indentures; and assets whose use by
the Homes has been limited by donors to specific purposes or time periods. Amounts
available to meet current liabilities have been classified as current assets in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Investments and Investment Risk

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in
debt securities are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet. The fair value
of substantially all securities is determined by quoted market prices. Investment income or
loss (including realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, and
dividends), excluding investment income or loss related to discontinued operations, is
included in operating income (loss) from continuing operations unless the income or loss is
restricted by donor or law. Interest income is measured as earned on the accrual basis.
Dividends are measured on the ex-dividend date. Purchases and sales of securities and
realized gains and losses are recorded on a trade-date basis.

The Homes' investments are comprised of a variety of financial instruments. The fair values
reported in the consolidated balance sheet are subject to various risks including changes in
the equity markets, the interest rate environment, and general economic conditions. Due to
the level of risk associated with certain investment securities and the level of uncertainty
related to changes in the fair value of investment securities, it is reasonably possible that the
amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheet could change materially in the near
term.



United Methodist Homes

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The Foundation is the beneficiary of various perpetual trusts held with banks serving as
trustees. Under these arrangements, the Foundation receives a portion of the income
earned on the trust assets in perpetuity. The Foundation recorded the asset and recognized
permanently restricted contributions at the fair value of the Foundation's beneficial interest in
the trust assets. Substantially all income earned on the trust assets and distributed to the
Foundation is recorded as income distributions from perpetual trusts in the temporarily
restricted net asset class in the consolidated statement of changes in net assets. Changes
in fair value of the trusts are recorded as valuation gains and losses in the permanently
restricted net asset class.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted
support unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.
Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used
and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported
as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived
assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated
or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Intangible Assets

The Homes recorded various intangible assets which include deferred financing costs,
deferred development costs, and costs of acquiring initial continuing-care contracts.
intangible assets are classified with other assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

Computer software costs of $249,392 are recorded at December 31, 2016 and 2015. These
costs are being amortized over a three-year period using the straight-line method.
Amortization expense was $24,934 in 2016 and $53,601 in 2015. Accumulated amortization
was $249,356 and $224,422 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Deferred development costs of $116,779 are recorded at cost. These costs are being
amortized over a twenty-year period using the straight-line method. Amortization expense
was $4,865 in 2016 and $5,838 in 2015, respectively. Accumulated amortization was
$116,768 and $111,903 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs are being amortized over the term of the related debt using the
straight-line method. Amortization is included in interest expense.

Resident Trust Funds

Resident funds are accounted for as trust funds and are maintained separate from other
funds.

10



United Methodist Homes

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Entrance Fees

Under entrance fee plans for Brooks’ independent living units, the Homes receive payments
in advance. Residents are entitled to a guaranteed refund equal to 75% of the entrance fee
paid, with the balance, if any, refundable on a decreasing basis for five years. Refunds to
residents are not contingent on the resale of the unit and are paid within 60 days of
termination of the resident agreement. The total amount of contractual refund obligations
under existing resident agreements approximated $4,064,000 and $4,291,000 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The guaranteed refund component of entrance fees received is not amortized to income and
is classified as refundable fees in the consolidated balance sheet. The balance of entrance
fees received are amortized to income using the straight-line method over the annually
adjusted estimated remaining life expectancies of the residents and are classified as
deferred revenues from entrance fees in the consolidated balance sheet.

The majority of services provided to Brooks’ independent living residents are paid for on a
“fee-for-service” basis and are not included under the entrance fee plans.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Homes entered into interest rate swap agreements (Note 6), which are considered
derivative financial instruments, to manage the variable rate interest payments due on long-
term debt. The interest rate swap agreements are reported at fair value in the consolidated
balance sheet and related changes in fair value are reported in the consolidated statement
of operations.

Charitable Gift Annuities

The Homes received charitable gift annuities as contributions. Under these arrangements,
the Homes recorded the assets at fair value and the liabilities to the donor or their
beneficiaries at the present value of the estimated future payments to be distributed by the
Homes to such individuals. The amount of the contribution is the difference between the
asset and the liability and is recorded as temporarily restricted contributions.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Homes has been limited by
donors to specific purposes or time periods. Permanently restricted net assets have been
restricted by donors and are to be maintained for the Homes in perpetuity.

Net Resident Service Revenues

Net resident service revenues are reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
residents, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated
retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors.
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related
services are rendered and are adjusted in future periods, as final settlements are
determined. It is reasonably possible that the estimates used could change materially in the
near term.

11



United Methodist Homes

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Charity Care

The Homes maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. For
purposes of this disclosure, the Homes considers care provided to residents that are part of
its resident support program to be charity care. The Homes does not consider care provided
to Medical Assistance beneficiaries or residents that are eligible for Supplemental Security
Income (SSI) to be charity care. The costs associated with the charity care services
provided are estimated by applying a cost-to-charge ratio to the amount of gross
uncompensated charges for the residents receiving charity care. The Homes' estimated
costs of providing charity care services were approximately $868,000 in 2016 and $881,000
in 2015. The Homes received $167,708 and $144,010 in contributions restricted for charity
care during 2016 and 2015, respectively. In addition, the Homes received $623,021 and
$612,153 of income distributions from perpetual trusts restricted for charity care during 2016
and 2015, respectively.

Donor-Restricted Gifts

The Homes reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets
and reported in the consociidated statement of operations as net assets released from
restrictions.

Income Taxes

UMH NY Corp. is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the internal
Revenue Code and is exempt from federal income taxes on its exempt income under
Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

All other entities are not-for-profit corporations as described in Section 501(c)3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and are exempt from federal income taxes on their exempt income
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code under a group exemption with UMH NY
Corp.

The Homes accounts for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing a recognition threshold
of more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority.
Measurement of the tax uncertainty occurs if the recognition threshold has been met.
Management determined that there were no tax uncertainties that met the recognition
threshold in 2016 or 2015,

The Homes' federal Returns of Organization Exempt from Income Tax for the years prior to
December 31, 2013 are no longer subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service.

Operating Income from Continuing Operations

The consolidated statement of operations includes the determination of operating income
from continuing operations. Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from
operating income from continuing operations, consistent with industry practice, include net
gain from discontinued operations and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets
acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of
acquiring such assets).

12



United Methodist Homes

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

The Homes evaluated subsequent events for recognition or disclosure through
April 28, 2017, the date the consolidated financial statements were issued.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Not-for-Profit Financial Statement Presentation

In August 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB®) issued Accounting
Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The new guidance is intended to improve and
simplify the current net asset classification requirements and information presented in
financial statements and notes that is useful in assessing a not-for-profit’s liquidity, financial
performance and cash flows. ASU No. 2016-14 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. ASU No. 2016-14 is to be applied
retroactively with transition provisions. The Homes is assessing the impact of ASU No.
2016-14 will have on its financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
which provides a principles-based framework for revenue recognition that supersedes
virtually all previously issued revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP. Additionally,
the ASU requires improved disclosures to help users of financial statements better
understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue that is recognized. The
core principle of the five-step revenue recognition framework is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, which deferred
the effective date of the revenue recognition standard by a year, making it applicable for the
Homes in 2019. The ASU should be applied either retrospectively to each prior reporting
period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the ASU
recognized at the date of initial application. The Homes is in the process of evaluating the
potential impact of adopting this ASU, including determining which transition method to

apply.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

New Accounting Standards

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest (Topic 835-0):
Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. The ASU requires that debt issuance
costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented as a direct deduction from
the carrying amount of that debt liability. consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs are not affected. The Homes adopted
this guidance in 2016 by retroactively reporting deferred debt issuance costs of $829,081
(previously reported in 2015 in other assets, net) as a deduction from long-term debt
(see Note 6) at December 31, 2015 in the consolidated balance sheet and amortization of
debt issuance costs of $67,558 as a component of interest expense in the consolidated
statement of operations. The adoption had no impact on the Company’s financial position or
results of operations.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts relating to 2015 have been reclassified to conform to the 2016 reporting
format.

2. Net Resident Service Revenues

The Homes' nursing facilities have agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments
to the Homes at amounts different from its established rates. A significant portion of the Homes’
net resident service revenues is derived from these third-party payor programs. A summary of
the principal payment arrangements with third-party payors follows:

Medicare: Nursing and ancillary services provided to Medicare Part A beneficiaries are
paid at prospectively determined rates per day. These rates vary according to a resident-
specific classification system that is based on clinical diagnosis and is subject to various
limitations and adjustments. Approximately 11% of the Homes' net resident service
revenues in 2016 and 2015 were derived from the Medicare Part A program.

Medical Assistance - New York: Nursing services provided to Medical Assistance
program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates per day. These rates
vary according to a resident classification system that is based on clinical diagnosis and
other factors and is subject to various limitations and adjustments. Approximately 16%
and 14% of the Homes' net resident service revenues in 2016 and 2015, respectivaly,
were derived from the Medical Assistance - New York program.

Effective January 1, 2013, the New York State Department of Health implemented a new
prospective pricing reimbursement system. The implementation of this new system has
not had a material impact on the Homes’ operations.

Medical Assistance - Pennsylvania: Nursing services provided to Medical Assistance
program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates per day. These rates
vary according to a resident classification system that is based on clinical diagnosis and
other factors and is subject to various limitations and adjustments. Approximately 14%
and 15% of the Homes' net resident service revenues in 2016 and 2015, respectively,
were derived from the Medical Assistance - Pennsylvania Program.
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United Methodist Homes

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

As described above, the Medicare Part A and Medical Assistance rates are based on clinical
diagnosis and other factors. The Homes is required to clinically assess its residents at
predetermined time periods throughout the year. The documented assessments are subject to
review and adjustment by the Medical Assistance and Medicare programs.

Net resident service revenues include prior years third-party payor settlements of approximately
$675,000 in 2016 and $397,000 in 2015.

The Home accrued an estimated third-party payor settlement receivable of $11,837 and
$80,678 related to the activites of certain facilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. It is reasonably possible that the estimate could change in the near term.

The Homes also accrued an estimated third-party payor settlement payable of $156,097 and
$327,900 related to the activities of certain facilties at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. It is reasonably possible that the estimates could change in the near term.

The Homes' nursing facilities have also entered into payment agreements with certain
commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Homes under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per day or discounts from established charges.

3. Assets Whose Use is Limited / Fair Value Measurements and Financial Instruments
Fair Value Measurements

The Homes measures its cash and cash equivalents, assets whose use is limited, bensficial
interest in perpetual trusts, long-term debt and derivative financial instruments at fair value
on a recurring basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

For financial instruments required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis, fair
value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to dispose of a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair
value is measured using a hierarchy prioritizing the inputs used in determining valuations
into three levels. The level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest leve! input
that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible to the Homes
for identical assets.

Level 2 - Significant inputs, other than Level 1 inputs, that are observable either directly
or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability through corroboration
with observable market data.

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs.
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United Methodist Homes

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

The fair values of the Homes' cash and cash equivalents, assets whose use is limited,
beneficial interest in perpetual trusts, derivative financial instruments, and long-term debt
were measured with the following inputs at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

December 31, 2016

Quoted
Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable Unobservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Instruments measured and reported at fair value:
Assets:
Assets whose use is
limited:
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 6,805,211 $ 6,805,211 $ - $ -
Corporate bonds 23,940,425 - 23,940,425 -
U.S. government
agency obligations 898,929 - 898,929 -
Mutual funds:
Equity 21,286,956 21,286,956 - -
Fixed income 176 176 - -
Marketable equity
securities 500,188 590,188 - -
Other 7,065 - 7,065 -
Total assets whose
use is limited 53,528,950 28,682,531 24,846,419 -
Beneficial interest in
perpetual trusts 20,431,325 - - 20,431,325
Total $ 73,960,275 $ 28,682,531 $ 24,846,419 $ 20,431,325
Liabilities:
Derivative financial
instruments $ 1,625,306 3 - $ 16253086 $ -
Instruments disclosed at fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2808407 § 2808407 % - % -
Long-term debt $ 55,771,000 $ - _$ 65771,000 $ -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2015

Instruments measured and reported at fair value:

Assets:
Assets whose use is
limited:
Cash and cash
equivalents
Marketable certificates
of deposit
Corporate bonds
Mutual funds:
Equity
Fixed income
Marketable equity
securities
Other

Total assets whose
use is limited

Beneficial interest in
perpetual trusts

Total

Liabilities:
Derivative financial
instruments

Instruments disclosed at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents

Long-term debt

December 31, 2015

Quoted

Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable Unobservable

Markets Inputs Inputs

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 5615772 $ 5615772 - $ -
1,154,337 1,154,337 - -
23,422,957 - 23,422,957 -
17,218,769 17,218,769 - -
46,328 46,328 - -
519,908 519,908 - -
10,606 - 10,606 -
47,088,677 24,556,114 23,433,563 -
20,312,056 - - 20,312,056
$ 68,300,733 $ 24555114 23,433,563 $ 20,312,056
$ 1,558,426 $ - 1,558,426 $ -
$ 3,803,300 $ 3,803,300 - $ -
$ 50,202,546 $ - 50,292,546 $ -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

The Homes measures its beneficial interest in perpetual trusts at fair value based on the
fund’s underlying investments using unobservable inputs (Level 3) in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Changes to the
beneficial interest in perpetual trusts in 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

2016 2015

Beginning balance $ 20312056 $ 21,285,936
Investment income from beneficial interest in

perpetual trusts 245,797 283,032
Distributions from beneficial interest in

perpetual trusts (967,548) (945,214)
Valuation gain (loss), net 841,020 {311,698)
Ending balance $ 20431325 § 20,312,056

The net change in beneficial interest in perpetual trusts was a gain of $119,269 in 2016 and
a loss of $973,880 in 2015 and is reported as valuation loss in the permanently restricted
net asset class in the consolidated statement of changes in net assets. Substantially all
distributions from beneficial interest in perpetual trusts are reported as income distributions
from perpetual trusts in the temporarily restricted net asset ciass in the consolidated
statement of changes in net assets in accordance with trust documents.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due the short-
term nature of these instruments.

Assets whose use is limited are valued at fair value based on quoted market prices in active
markets for cash and cash equivalents, marketable certificates of deposit, mutual funds, and
marketable equity securities or estimated using quoted prices for similar securities for
corporate bonds, U.S. government agency obligations, and mortgage note receivable.

The fair values of the beneficial interest in perpetual trusts were determined using the fair
value of the investments in the trusts, which approximate the present value of the future
distributions expected to be received.

The carrying amount before unamortized deferred financing costs of long-term debt
approximated fair value at December 31, 2016 and 2015. The fair values are based on
quoted market prices for the same or similar issues.

The Homes measures its derivative financial instruments (Notes 1 and 6) at fair value based
on proprietary models of an independent third party valuation specialist. The fair value takes
into consideration the prevailing interest rate environment and the specific terms and
conditions of the derivative financial instrument, and considers the credit risk of the Homes
and the counterparty. The method used to determine the fair value calculates the estimated
future payments required by the derivative financial instruments and discounts these
payments using an appropriate discount rate. The value represents the estimated exit price
the Homes would pay to terminate the agreements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Unrestricted investment income from continuing operations is comprised of the following:

2016 2015
Net unrealized gain (loss) on trading securities $ 2303753 $ {665,835)
Interest and dividend income 945,842 812,844
Net realized gain on sales of securities 85,262 61,479
Total $ 3,334,857 3 208,488

In compliance with Act 82, the Board of Directors designated that a portion of Brooks’ assets
whose use is limited be ‘reserved” to meet the requirements of Act 82. Brooks maintains the
‘reserved” funds in a separate account. The statutory minimum liquid reserve requirement was
approximately $521,000 at December 31, 2016 and was calculated as follows:

Brooks’ budgeted operating expenses for the year
ending December 31, 2017 $ 1,548,000
Less: budgeted depreciation and amortization expense 490,000

Expenses subject to minimum liquid reserve

requirement 1,058,000
Statutory requirement 10%
Statutory minimum liquid reserve requirement $ 105,800 (a)

Brooks’ debt service requirements for the year ending
December 31, 2017

Principal payments due on 2013 Bonds $ 380,000

Budgeted interest payments on 2013 Bonds 141,000

Statutory minimum liquid reserve requirement $ 521,000 (b)
Greater of (a) or (b) above $ 521,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is as follows:

Land

Real estate improvements
Buildings and facilities
Fixed equipment

Furniture and equipment
Linen, china, and glassware
Automotive equipment

Total

Less accumulated depreciation
Total

Construction in progress

Property and equipment, net

5. Other Assets, Net

Other assets, net are as follows:

Land held for future development
Escrow deposits

Software, net

Deferred development costs, net
Other

Total

2016 2015
$ 1,566,580 $ 1,566,580
33,028,068 22,913,210
46,241,933 46,478,915
34,907,375 24,046,557
13,674,540 13,134,270
1,128,002 996,765
681,143 667,252
131,227,641 109,803,549
68,222,318 64,619,808
63,005,323 45,183,741
128,804 17,891,539
$ 63,134,127 § 63,075,280
2016 2015
$ 2,158,508 $ 2,158,598
381,043 378,813
36 24970
11 4,876
8.922 8,924
$ 2548610 $ 2,576,181
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

6. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt is as follows:

2016 2015

In June 2013, the Northeastern Pennsylvania Hospital
and Educational Authority {the “Authority”) issued
$49,973,000 of tax exempt variable rate revenue bonds
("2013 Bonds”"). The bond issue is comprised of three
series: Series A ($5,851,000), Series B ($32,943,000)
and Series C ($11,179,000). 2013 Bond proceeds were
used to refund and to retire all prior bond related
indebtedness of the Homes ("2003 Bonds"), to pay
certain costs of issuing the 2013 bonds and a portion of
the costs, including capitalized interest, associated with
renovations and improvements being made to various
facilities of the Homes. Proceeds of the 2013 Bonds
associated with renovations and improvements will be
drawn-down over the period of construction.

Variable rate tax-exempt Revenue Bonds, 2013 Series:
The 2013 Bonds are due in varying monthly
installments through August 2043, plus interest
payable at a variable rate determined monthly by
prevailing market conditions (1.65% at
December 31, 2016) $ 46,521,000 $ 47,669,000
Loan Agreement, Citizens Bank, N.A.:
Principal on the loan is payable in monthly
installments of $78,083, plus interest payable at a
variable rate determined monthly by prevailing

market conditions (1.57% at December 31, 2016) 9,250,000 2,568,546

Note payable paid off in 2016 - 55,000
Total 55,771,000 50,292,546

Less deferred financing costs 760,842 829,081
Less current maturities 2,262,000 1,203,000
Long-term debt $ 52,748,158 $ 48,260,465

The 2013 Bonds have been issued by the Authority pursuant to a Bond Purchase and Loan
Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) by and among the Authority, Citizens Bank, N.A., a national
banking association organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America
(the “Bank™) and UMH NY Corp., UMH PA Corp., the Foundation and UMH Management
Services Corp. (collectively, the "Obligated Group®). Under the terms of the Purchase
Agreement, the Bank purchased the 2013 Bonds from the Authority. issuance proceeds
received by the Authority, from the Bank, have been loaned (the “Loan”) to the Obligated Group.
The Purchase Agreement provides for the Obligated Group to repay the Loan to the Authority in
installments equal to payments of debt service on the 2013 Bonds. As security for payment, and
performance, of all obligations under the 2013 Bonds, the Authority has assigned to the Bank all
of its right, title and interest under the Purchase Agreement, including the right to receive Loan
payments payable by the Obligated Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015

Concurrent with the execution of the Purchase Agreement, the Obligated Group entered into a
Reimbursement Agreement {the “Reimbursement Agreement’) with the Bank which further
delineates the various terms and conditions associated with the 2013 Bonds. The Bond
Purchase Agreement and Reimbursement Agreement are secured by a first mortgage lien on,
and security interest in, the Obligated Group's assets, including all property and equipment and
substantially all revenues, as defined in the applicable agreements. The 2013 Bonds are subject
to demand for purchase at the election of the Bank (“Tender Option") on June 1, 2023 and
thereafter every ten (10) years on June 1, upon not less than 180 days written notice of demand
to the Obligated Group. The Obligated Group may request in writing that the Bank not exercise
the Tender Option on or before June 1, 2022 (and on, or before, June 1 of every tenth (10%)
year thereafter). Any agreement not to exercise a Tender Option is in the Bank’s sole discretion.

The Obligated Group is required to meet certain financial and operating covenants under the
terms of the 2013 Bond documents.

The Homes has entered into a Non-replenishing Line of Credit Loan Agreement, Pledge
Agreement and Promissory Note Agreement (collectively, the “Loan Agreement”) with the Bank.
The Loan Agreement is secured by cash and marketable securities held in a custodial account
maintained at the Bank.

Scheduled principal payments on long-term debt are as follows:

Years ending December 31:

2017 $ 2,262,000
2018 2,288,000
2019 2,313,000
2020 2,341,000
2021 2,369,000
Thereafter 44,198,000

Total $ 55,771,000

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

UMH NY Corp., UMH PA Corp. and UMH Management Services Corp. (collectively, “Fixed
Rate Payer"} entered into interest rate swap agreements (“Swap Agreement”) in connection
with a portion of Series A, Series B and Series C of the 2013 Bonds. The Swap Agreement
is considered derivative financial instruments. The counterparty to the Swap Agreement is
the Bank (“*Floating Rate Payer’), with which the Fixed Rate Payer has other financial
relationships. The objective of the Swap Agreement is to minimize the risks associated with
financing activities by reducing the impact of changes in interest rates. The Swap
Agreements are not designated as hedging instruments. The Swap Agreements are a
contract to exchange variable rate for fixed rate interest payments over the life of the 2013
Bonds without the exchange of the underlying notional amount. The notional amount of the
Swap Agreements change monthly and approximate 75% of the 2013 Bond principal
outstanding. The notional amount is used to measure the interest to be paid or received,
and does not represent the amount of exposure to credit loss. Exposure to credit loss is
limited to the receivable amount, if any, which may be generated as a result of the Swap
Agreements. The Homes believes that losses related to credit risk are remote. The net cash
paid or received under the Swap Agreements is recognized as an adjustment to interest
expense,
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The Homes do not utilize interest rate swaps or other financial instruments for trading or
other speculative purposes.

At December 31, 2016, the following interest rate and related Swap Agreement terms were

in effect:

2013 Bond Series Sories A Series B Series C
Effective notional amount $ 3,541,500 $ 24,586,500 $ 6,762,750
Interest rate:

Fixed Rate Payer 1.9500% 2.7400% 1.9500%

Floating Rate based on
USD-LIBOR-BBA
times 72% 0.61672% 0.61672% 0.61672%

The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements is the amount that the Fixed Rate
Payer would receive or pay to terminate the swap agreements at the reporting date and is
based on information supplied by the Bank and an independent third party valuation
specialist. The Homes estimates that it would have paid $1,625,306 and paid $1,558,426 on
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, to terminate swap agreements.

As a result of swap agreements, interest expense was increased $535,000 in 2016 and
$343,000 in 2015.

7. Other Liabilities

Other liabilities are as follows:

2016 2018
Escrow deposits $ 381,043 $ 378,813
Split-interest obligations 284,899 332,616
Construction retainage 136,400 776,350
Total $ 802,342 $ 1,487,779

8. Retirement Plan

The Homes sponsors a defined contribution pension plan. The Homes contributions to the plan
were $812,601 in 2016 and $660,273 in 2015.
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9. Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily and permanently restricted net assets are designated by donors for the following

purposes:

Temporarily restricted net assets:
Resident support

Payment of operating expenses and/or
purchase of property and equipment

Chaplaincy program
Payment of operating expenses

Permanently restricted net assets:
Resident support
Purchase of property and equipment

Total

Payment of operating expenses and/or
purchase of property and equipment

Payment of operating expenses

Total

2016 2015
$ 3002015 $ 3,177,518
2,408,025 2,227,473
237,964 244,064
25,929 49,704
$ 5,673,933 $ 5,698,759
$ 14,807,330 $ 14,649,726
5,003,620 5,941,955
154,640 154,640
46,000 46,000
$ 20,911,590 $ 20,792,321

Principal of permanently restricted net assets is held in perpetuity. Income distributions from

permanently restricted net assets are used for the donor designations specified.

10. Medical Malpractice Claims Coverage

The Homes maintains malpractice insurance on a claims-made basis. Other than for premiums
paid under this policy, no provision has been made for estimated losses. Management believes
no incidents have occurred or will be asserted that will exceed the Homes’ insurance coverages
or will have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Construction Agreements

The Homes has entered into a construction agreement totaling approximately $20,183,557
relating to renovations and improvements being made to various facilities located in
Pennsylvania. Costs incurred on the construction agreements through December 31, 2016

were approximately $19,968,113.
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Self-Insured Medical Plan

UMH maintains a self-insured medical plan for the benefit of its employees. A stop loss
policy is in effect, which limits UMH's loss per individual employee to $150,000. The medical
plan is administered through a contractual relationship with two unrelated companies.
However, UMH is solely responsible for all claims incurred up to the amount of the stop loss
provisions. UMH's expense under the self-insured medical plan amounted to $3,675,509 for
the year ended December 31, 2016.

Self-Insured Workers' Compensation

During the years ended December 31, 1996, 1997 and 1998, the Homes participated in a
joint self-insured workers compensation insurance Trust (the “pool”) sponsored by the New
York Association of Homes and Services for the Aging for its members. The pool provided
for joint and severable liability for members participating in the pool in addition to retroactive
claim settlement responsibility by each member for their ctaims until all claims are finally and
completely settled. The Homes withdrew from the pool effective January 1, 1999 and
provided a reserve for all estimated future claims at that time. The Homes has continued to
receive and pay claims annually since withdrawal from the pool and continues to have joint
and severable liability for the unsettled claims of other members during the years that the
Homes participated in the pool. The Homes accrued approximately $157.000 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 in connection with the pool; these amounts are included in
other accrued expenses in the consolidated balance sheet. The Homes believes costs
associated with this self-insured workers compensation pool have been properly accounted
for and accrued at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Litigation

The Homes periodically is subject to claims and litigation that arise in the ordinary course
of operations. It is the opinion of management that the disposition or ultimate resclution of
such claims and litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of
the Homes. Management believes their insurance coverage will be sufficient to pay
fiabilities, if any.

12. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Homes grants credit without collateral to its residents, some of whom are insured under
third-party payor agreements, primarily with Medicare and Medical Assistance.

The Homes maintains cash and cash equivalents which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The Homes has not experienced any losses from maintaining cash and cash equivalents
in excess of federally insured limits. Management believes it is not subject to any significant
credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents.
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13. Functional Expenses

The Homes provides elder care services to residents within its geographic locations. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows (including discontinued operations):

2016 2015
Resident services $ 52,960,708 $ 50,426,633
General and administrative 10,423,176 9,827,594
Total $ 63,383,884 $ 60,254,227

14. Discontinued Operations

On December 31, 2010, Grace View Nursing sold its nursing facility and related assets. As a
result, the operating results for Grace View Nursing are reported as discontinued operations in
the consolidated financial statements in 2016. A summary of the net gain on discontinued
operations for 2016 is as follows:

Grace View
Nursing
Unrestricted revenues, gain and other support $ 111,257
Operating expenses 18
Net loss from discontinued operations 3 111,239
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United Methodist Homes

Combining Divisional Information, Schedule of Changes in Net Assets
UMH PA Corp.
Year Ended December 31, 2016

Anderson
Tunkhannock Brooks Wesley Personal
Manor Estates Village Care Eliminations Total
Unrestricted Net Assets
Operating income (loss) 3 (290,744) $ 1,018,052 § 579,972 {462,903} $ 844,377
Transfers from affiliates 73,167 - - 1,575 74,742
Net assets released from restrictions used
for purchase of property and equipment 2,523 42,413 72,045 5,975 122,956
Increase (decrease) in net assets (215,054) 1,060,465 652,017 {455,353) 1,042,075
Net Assets, Beginning £98,472 7,585,747 7,043,731 2,214,683 17,442,633
Net Assets, Ending 3 383,418 3 8,646,212 $ 7,695,748 1,759,330 $ 18,484,708
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BROOKS ESTATES

(A DIVISION OF UMH PA Corp.)

PRO-FORMA STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

UNRESTRICTED REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT:

Net resident service revenues

Other operating revenues

Investment income, primarily interest and dividends
Net assets released from restriction

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments

Total unrestricted revenues, gains and cther support

EXPENSES:

Nursing

Dietary

Housekeeping

Social Services and activities
Plant operations

General and administrative
Management services
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on advance refunding of long-lterm debt
Interest

Total expenses excluding change in fair value of
derivative financial instrument

Operating income {loss) before change in fair value of
derivative financial instrument

Change in fair value of derivative financial instrument

DEPARTMENTAL SUMMARY
Acual
2016 Qver
2017 Audited 2016 {Under)
Budget Aclual Budget Budget

1.859,785 1,870,435 1,824,462 45,973
11,550 8.765 11,550 (2.785)

138,800 157,145 122,000 35,145

- 487972 - 487 972

2,010,135 2,524,317 1,858,012 566,305
5,350 3,566 5410 (1.844)
32,425 30,154 32,198 (2.044)
14,500 13,147 14,500 (1.353)
596,367 554,235 636,909 (82,674}

147,572 149,414 128,991 20,423
120,816 125,030 129,480 (4.450)

490,097 480,545 476,785 3,760

140,811 150,602 133,326 17,276
1,547,938 1,506,693 1,557,599 {50,9086)

462,197 1,017,624 400,413 617,211
- {428) - (428)

462,197 1,018,052 400,413 617,639

OPERATING INCOME (.LOSS)

Page 1 of 2



BROOKS ESTATES

(A DIVISION OF UMH PA Corp.)

PRO-FORMA STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FUNCTIONAL SUMMARY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

UNRESTRICTED REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT.

Net resident service revenues

Other operating revenues

Investment income, primarily interest and dividends
Net assets released from restriction

Unrealized gains {losses) on investments

Total unrestricted revenues, gains and other support

EXPENSES:

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes and employee benefits
Insurance

Other direct expenses

Professional fees

Purchased and contracted services
Supplies and materials

Utilities

Management fees, allocated
Depreciation and amortization

Loss on advance refunding of long-term debt
Interest

Total expenses excluding change in fair value of
derivative financial instrument

Cperating income (loss) before change in fair value of
derivative financial instrument

Change in fair value of derivative financial instrument

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

Acual
2016 Over
2017 Audited 2016 (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget

1,858,785 1,870,435 1.824,462 45,973
11,550 8,765 11,550 (2,785)

138,800 157,145 122,000 35,145

- 487,972 - 487 972

2,010,135 2,524,317 1,958,012 566,305
178,472 130,228 204,469 (74.241)

43,635 67,430 47,100 20,330

46,000 50,756 37,000 13,756
14,849 13.929 16.347 {2,418)
4,750 2,329 4,750 (2.421)
174,933 167,689 172,953 {5.264}
43,625 41,205 41,789 {584)
289,950 276,950 293,600 (16.650)
120,816 125,030 129,480 (4.450)

490,097 480,545 476,785 3.760

140,811 150,602 133,326 17,276
1,547,938 1,506,693 1,567,599 {50,9086)

462,197 1,017,624 400,413 617,211
- (428) - (428)

462,197 1,018,052 400,413 617,639

Page 2 of 2
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All Biographical Affidavits have been previously submitted to the Pennsylvania Insurance Department.
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BROOKS ESTATES

Resident Agreement
Advance Fee Plan

Community: Brooks Estates
A Division of the
United Methodist Homes
209 Roberts Road
Pittston, Pennsylvania 18640

Resident (s): (Name)
(Name)
(Address

Living Accommodation: Located at:
Brooks Estates

Pittston, Pennsylvania 18640

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of , 20 between
THE UNITED METHODIST HOMES (“United Methodist Homes "), a Pennsylvania
nonprofit corporation with offices at Pittston, Reglvania, which owns and opera@®oks
Estates a continuing care community (hereafter called*@@mmunity” ) and

(Names)

(hereinafter refeaedhether this Agreement is executed by
one or two individuals, afResident) who has applied for and who has been approved fo
admission to the continuing care community by BoBktates.

Subject to the signing of this Agreement, Commuartd Resident, intending to be legally
bound, hereby agree to the following terms and itimms:



1. Statement Regarding Continuing Care.

Beginning with the date on which Resident movés and occupies a cottage unit (the
“Occupancy Date”) at the Community, the Commurstyhject to the terms hereof, will furnish
Resident a cottage unit (“Living Accommodation"yédher with the Community's services
specified in this Agreement, for and during theabak of Resident's life or for such shorter period
as shall apply under this Agreement in the evesttérminated pursuant to its terms. The
Occupancy Date for all purposes under this agreestedl be , or the
date on which Resident first personally occupiesLiiving Accommodation, whichever occurs
first.

2. Security Deposit and Advance Fee.

Resident shall pay to the Community a Securityd3émf $1,000 and Advance Fee of
$ for the use and occupancy of thiad.ikccommodation as follows:

(&) The sum of $1,000 (One Thousand) dollars $tgdbeposit paid upon application
for residency; this Security Deposit shall be refainle as provided in this Agreement;

(b) 10 % of the Advance Fee, namely, $ upon signing of this
Agreement;
(c) The remaining balance, namely $ one week before the occupancy

date.

The Security Deposit and Advance Fee deposit (1 #e Advance Fee) will be held in
escrow, prior to the Occupancy Date. The Advaneedaéd by the Resident will not be increased
during the life of this Agreement.

The Advance Fee received will be applied as foltows
Advance Fee Amount

Health Care Reserve allowance $4,000

Entrance Fee, non-refundable portion, twenty{fieecent (25%) of the
amount remaining after the Health Care Resetegvahce

Entrance Fee, refundable portion, seventy-fivegmr(75%) of the
amount remaining after the Health Care Resetegvahce

Totalp



The Community will earn and retain the non-refurldadortion of the Entrance Fee on a
monthly basis over a sixty (60) month period begigrwith the Occupancy Date using the
“straight-line method” (equally each month).

The Resident is entitled to a lifetime maximum lHe&are Reserve allowance of four
thousand dollars ($4,000) for health care in coction with the payment of the Advance Fee. A
Health Care Reserve escrow account will be estadaliso account for the Health Care Reserve of
each resident paying an Advance Fee. Should thel€dsequire institutional health care in the
form of hospital care, nursing care, personal assisted living care or home health care at the
United Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campus, araither institutional health care provider
offering such services, the Resident may use tlatiH€are Reserve to pay for the charges for
such care provided, including co-insurance change$p a maximum of $4,000. The cost of such
care will be deducted from the Health Care Reseseeow for the Resident upon appropriate
notification to the Community. A statement will peovided to the Resident on a quarterly basis
summarizing the balance in their Health Care Resaceount. Should a Resident terminate this
Agreement pursuant to the terms contained heteenResident will receive a refund of the unused
balance in their Health Care Reserve account. Cldramunity will retain interest earned on the
Health Care Reserve escrow account for operations.

If Resident elects to rescind this Agreement wieven (7) days of the date on which this
Agreement is executed, Resident shall be entidedrefund of all amounts paid to the
Community including interest. Attached to this Agmeent is aNotice of Right to Rescindthat
Resident may utilize in order to cancel this AgreamIf Resident expires before occupancy date,
or through illness, injury or incapacity is prechadfrom becoming a resident under the terms of
this Agreement, this Agreement is automaticallgireded and the Resident or his legal
representative shall receive a full refund (witBhdays of the Community receiving written
notice of termination) of all monies paid to then@aunity, except those costs specifically
incurred by the Community at the request of theid®es and set forth in writing in the attached
Schedule "A", signed by the parties to this Agreetmi Resident elects to rescind this Agreement
more than seven (7) days after it is executegbat to occupancy, Resident shall be entitled to a
refund of all amounts paid excluding any interesthed by Brooks Estates less any expenses
incurred by the Community at Resident’s request.

The Community reserves the right to establish adedees of a different amount for
persons being admitted to residency after the lietteof, and the fees charged such other persons
need not be uniform with or proportional to thobarged to the Resident under this Agreement.

3. Monthly Fee/Rental Payment (*“Monthly Fee”).

In addition to the other amounts paid by the Rastido the Community under this
Agreement, Resident will pay to the Community a nFee as rent of $ each
month in advance (on or before the 1st day of eachth).



The Monthly Fee is based on the number of persoaspying the cottage unit. If two
Residents sign this Agreement, the Monthly Fee lvglreduced to the single occupancy rate if one
of the two expires or permanently withdraws frorm @ommunity, effective on the date of the
withdrawal. If one of the Residents temporarilyhditaws from the Community and is admitted to
another level of care at a United Methodist Honaedity, the Monthly Fee will be adjusted as of
the first day of the month following such admisstorthe United Methodist Homes facility. Upon
return to the Community from another United MetlsbdHomes facility, the Monthly Fee will be
adjusted as of the first day of the month followreturn to the Community to the appropriate
multiple-occupancy rate. The Community reservegitjte to establish monthly fees of a different
amount for persons being admitted to residency #itedate hereof, and the fees charged such
other persons need not be uniform with, or propaédi to, those charged to the Resident under
this Agreement. The Monthly Fee for persons bethgitted to residency after the date hereof will
begin as of the date of occupancy.

The Monthly Fee may be adjusted by the Communatynftime to time to reflect factors
affecting the cost of operations including actya¢m@ting expenses, the Consumer Price Index, the
cost of complying with governmental regulation® thaintenance of necessary reserves, and to
ensure the financial stability of the CommunityeT@ommunity agrees that, the exercise of its
sole discretion, which shall be binding on the BRest, it will endeavor to maintain the Monthly
Fee at the lowest feasible figure which in the judgt of the Board of Directors of the United
Methodist Homes is consistent with sound finanodration and maintenance of the quality of
service the Community has undertaken to provideindiiease or decrease shall be effective until
the Resident shall have received thirty (30) datgca of such change, except for changes
required by Federal, State or local laws, rulesegulations. In the event more than one person
occupies the Living Accommodation, then each sweisgn shall be jointly and severally liable
and responsible for payment of the Monthly Fee. diblegation to pay the Monthly Fee shall
commence from and after the Occupancy Date.

The Community will present a detailed monthly eta¢nt including the Monthly Fee for
the following month, any charges for additionaivssss rendered during the preceding month, and
any other amounts due the Community. The MonthlyiBalue in advance, and it, and all other
charges appearing on the monthly statement, sbadblnl to the Community on or before the 1st
day of the calendar month following the date ofsteement. If the Resident does not pay the
Monthly Fee on or before the 10th day of that mpRibsident shall be in default under this
Agreement and subject to termination of this Agreetras provided herein.

The resident will be responsible for the MonthgeRFegardless of absence from the unit
for hospitalization, personal care, nursing caretber reasons. In the case of absence for
vacation, the resident shall receive a reductiathénMonthly Fee of fifty dollars ($50) per month
if absent for more than thirty (30) consecutivesdagon ten (10) days prior notice to the
Community.



4. Accommodations Provided.

a) Living Accommodation:

From and after the Occupancy Date, Resident hasgiieto occupy and use the
Living Accommodation selected by Resident subjechange only as hereinafter
provided. Subject to the right to have guestsuiaragraph 16 hereof, at no time shall
Living Accommodation be occupied by more than pveosons. At least one Resident
occupying the Living Accommodation must be 65 ge#rage or older.

b) Furnishings:

Community will furnish wall-to-wall carpeting, alperies, washer, dryer,
refrigerator, stove, microwave, dishwasher, garlshgigosal, smoke detectors, telephones
and automatic garage door openers in the LivingbAgoodation. These furnishings, even
if upgraded at Resident's request and expensé rehmdin the property of the Community.
All other furnishings shall be provided by Residentbject to the supervision of, and
approval by, the Community and shall remain Reglg@ersonal property.

5. Services Provided by Community to ResidentRasident Duties.

a) Utilities and Taxes:

Community will furnish gas, electricity, heat, @onditioning, hot/cold water,
sewer, and connectivity access for cable televigidhe Living Accommodation. Garbage
and trash removal is also available from collecpomts. Resident shall be responsible for
telephone and cable television services. Commuviltyalso be responsible for real estate
taxes assessed against its property, provided,Jeywat Community may, in addition to
the Monthly Fee, impose surcharges if Communityl shake a good faith determination
that increasing costs for the abovementioned it@ase surcharges necessary. Community
shall give Resident thirty (30) days notice in athaof the date when surcharges are due.

b) Telephone/Cable Television:

The Community will provide telephone equipmend aonnectivity access for
cable television in the Living Accommodation. Tdilepe and cable television services
shall be at the expense of the Resident.

c) Housekeeping:

Community will provide once-a-month light housekiegp(approximately one
hour) in Resident's cottage unit and one generalarcleaning. Resident will be
responsible for all other housekeeping functiormm@unity will also provide



housekeeping services to the common areas. Putsu@ommunity’s Housekeeping
Policy, resident will be granted an option to deelCommunity-provided housekeeping
services and receive a credit to the monthly fee.

d) Maintenance and Repairs:

Necessary repairs, maintenance and replacemenvpénty and equipment owned

by the Community will be performed and provided@gymmunity except that the
cost thereof shall be paid by Resident if causethéyegligence (as determined by the
Community) ofResident. Repairs, maintenance, and replacemgmopérty of Resident
shall be the responsibility of Resident.

e) Structural Changes:

All structural or physical changes of any kindhan or about the Living
Accommodation will be made only upon first beingpagved in writing by the Community
and, upon approval, will be subject to the Commumgupervision. The cost of any such
change requested by Resident shall be borne bg&dsunless otherwise agreed to in

writing, and all such changes immediately beconteramain the permanent
property of the Community.

f) Redecoration:

Redecoration of the Living Accommodation, in adufhitto, or other than that
scheduled by the Community, will require the wntegpproval of the Community and will
be at Resident's expense. Changes or replacemtr fafrnishings provided by the
Community in the Living Accommodation vests titteeteto in Community, unless
otherwise provided in writing.

g) Grounds:
Community will furnish basic grounds-keeping careluding lawn service and
snow removal. With the Community’s approval, Restdanay elect to plant and then

maintain a specific area adjacent to the Resid&ntiag Accommodation.

h) Food and Meals:

The Monthly Fee does not include the cost of medlsneals shall be at the
expense of the Resident.



1) Local Transportation:

The Monthly Fee does not include the cost ofgpamntation; the Community will
provide limited scheduled local transportationRasidents at the expense of the Resident.

J) Parking:
The Community will provide and maintain open pagkareas.

k) Community and Wellness Center facility:

Residents, in common with others, may use thenwanity room, library, chapel,
cinema room, therapeutic pool, fully equipped fsiexercise room and other amenities
that, from time to time, comprise the Community &ddllness Center facility.

The average annual costs to the Community ofignay the accommodations
identified in Section 4 and the services providgdhg Community to the Resident as
identified in this section are $

6. Health Care Services Excluded.

The Community does not undertake to provide hezlthk services of any nature in its
Monthly Fee. The Community also does not undertakgovide health care services of any
nature in its Entrance Fee. When care is recadueithg a stay at other facilities of the United
Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campus or in thangvAccommodation, Residents are
required to pay for health care services includingnot limited to the following:

a) Charges of any physician, podiatrist, or thistap

b) Prescription drugs and medical supplies.

¢) Vision, hearing, and dental care includingsalbplies, equipment, and appliances.

d) Mental health services.

e) Hospital charges.

f) Other health related services the cost for whihcustomarily charged to the Resident.

0) Institutional health care including hospitaleanursing care, personal care, assisted
living care, home health care and other forms sfitutional health care.



The Community will not assume any liability forymaent of health care services provided
to a Resident because all such services are ekpeastuded from Section 5 (Services Provided
by Community to Resident and Resident’s Duties}eNonder 31 PA. Code Section 151.8 (d), if
the Community did provide health care services unddResident Agreement, the provider is to
agree that the resident shall not be liable toadtineare provider for health care services rerdiere
under the resident’s agreement. In the event dhheate provider in such case seeks payment
from the resident, the continuing care providellskesume liability for payment of the health care
services rendered, if the health care servicesereddare services which a provider agreed to
furnish to a resident in consideration of the restt payment of entrance and periodic fees. In
this case, however, the Community under this Residgreement expressly excludes health care
services to the resident, and as such, does nanhasany liability for payment of health care
services provided to a Resident.

7. Mental lliness or Dangerous Disease.

The Community is not designed to care for persams are afflicted with psychosis,
serious mental illness, contagious or dangerowsades. If the Community determines, in its sole
and absolute discretion, through the assessmeist [diedical Director or other qualified nursing
or medical professional that tReesident's continued presence in the Living Accougfetion is
either dangerous or detrimental to the health tgaiepeace of the Resident or other Residents of
Brooks Estates, then the Community may transferd@as or otherwise advise Resident to
transfer to an appropriate facility for such céfpon such transfer, this Agreement shall be
subject to termination as provided for in this Agreent. In the event Resident refuses to transfer
to an appropriate facility for such care determiteetle necessary by the Community, this
Agreement shall be subject to termination as pexviderein.

8. Relocation to a Different Accommodation.

Community may relocate a Resident to a differevinlg Accommodation in the
Community substantially similar to that unit seéztby Resident in this Agreement if it
determines in good faith that such move should adenfor the benefit of the operation of the
Community, as determined by the Community in caiasioin with the Resident’s personal
physician and/or the Medical Director or other pssional staff when appropriate. In the event of
such relocation, Community shall assume respoitgibdr all reasonable moving and relocation
expenses of Resident. If Resident becomes unapi®perly maintain the Living
Accommodation either because of mental or physisability, incapacity, incompetence, or
medical reasons of whatever nature, and Resid@miised of occupancy in either the personal
care or nursing care units of the United MethoHisimes Wesley Village Campus, Community
shall give priority status to Resident in assigrtimg next available personal care or nursing care
bed to Resident. Although priority status may hesgito Resident for relocation within the United
Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campus under suctiicaécircumstances, Community makes
no guaranty that such a personal care or nursirgghesd is or will be available.
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If Resident elects to move to a different Livingedmmodation, such relocation shall be
permitted subject to availability. When a unit beas available, this Agreement shall be
terminated and Resident shall receive a refunde®idvance Fee for the vacated unit as provided
in this Agreement. Resident shall, upon occupartigeonew unit, enter into a new Resident
Agreement and pay the then-current Advance Fethénew unit prior to occupancy. Resident
shall also pay the applicable Monthly Fee for the/mnit upon occupancy.

If two Residents occupying separate Living Accomat®mns request a transfer to one of
the two accommodations, and if the Community apgsauch transfer, this Agreement shall be
terminated and a refund of the Advance Fee as gedvinerein shall be paid to the Resident. The
Resident shall thereupon enter into a new Resilgrdement and shall pay the then-current
Advance Fee and Monthly Fee for the remaining oexlipiving Accommodation. The Monthly
Fee will be the two-person rate for the remaining accupied.

9. Application and Entrance Procedures.

a) Application for Residency.

Resident's application for residency in the Comnryushiall include, but may not be
limited to, the following:

1) Application Form including financial statement
2) Medical Records

b) Medical Policy.

It is the policy of the Community that on the dhgttthe Resident enters into
residency in the Living Accommodation that he o ble ambulatory, mentally alert and
able to live independently. The medical conditiéfiResident shall be subject to review
and verification upon admission and annually thigeeahrough an assessment by the
Resident’s personal physician to be provided tadbmmunity and/or through the
assessment of the Medical Director or other qualifursing or medical professional of
the Community who shall conduct an examinatiorhefResident at Community's expense
when requested by Community. Persons who do not thege qualifications may, with
the approval of the Community, nevertheless enternesidency if his or her spouse or
other qualified co- resident is occupying the sami¢ and is willing and able to provide
the necessary care and assistance to said Refadgf to meet such qualifications. In
such circumstance, the Community may require pi@dke furnished from time to time
that such care and assistance can be provideahoResident by the spouse or other co-
resident in order to continue residency in the solé absolute discretion of Community.

When two persons have executed this Agreementthatimtention of occupying
the same Living Accommodation and prior to enterimig occupancy, one of the
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Residents is unable to meet the physical or medécplirements for occupancy, the
Community shall have the option of either termingtihis Agreement and making a refund
as provided in this Agreement or of permitting Ressident who is unable to meet the
physical or medical requirements of this Agreentergnter into a personal care or nursing
care unit of the United Methodist Homes Wesleyag# Campus. The Community shall
give priority status to such Resident in assignirgnext available personal care or nursing
care bed to Resident at the United Methodist Hovdesley Village Campus, although
Community makes no guaranty that such a bed islbbgvavailable. The remaining co-
resident who has met all the physical or medicgliirements may take possession of the
Living Accommodation as provided herein. If thesRient occupying the personal care or
nursing care bed progresses to the point where slesocan meet the conditions for
entrance into the Living Accommodation as set fantthis Agreement, he or she can then
enter into said Living Accommodation jointly appuliéor with the other Resident .

c) Review of Financial Condition.

Prior to the date of entry into a Resident's Livikagcommodation, Resident shall
have a final review with the Community administrado other authorized person to review
the financial condition of Resident and to ensteg¢ ho adverse changes in the financial
condition of Resident have occurred subsequelteg@xecution of the application form or
financial statement submitted which may render ¢Ragiunable to meet the conditions of
entrance established, from time to time, by the @omty. In the event Resident is unable
to meet these financial conditions, the Communiaynat its sole discretion, terminate this
Agreement prior to Resident's occupancy in whiagtnéResident will receive a refund of
all amounts paid in accordance with the provisioinhis Agreement.

Resident will complete a financial condition staent and submit to Community
such financial condition statement and all otlvearicial information reasonably
requested for review by Community on an annuakb&mmunity may terminate this
agreement if Resident fails, neglects or refuseomply with this request for continuing
financial information.

10. Policy Concerning Financial Difficulty.

Community declares it to be its policy that Residghall not be dismissed, nor will

Resident’s Agreement be terminated, solely becaliBesident's financial inability to continue to
pay all or part of the Monthly Fee. However, Resitt¥eacceptance into the Community has been
based on facts recorded in Resident's applicatypmhich facts Community determined that
Resident was able to meet all of the financialgdilons specified in this Agreement. If Resident
adversely affects his or her ability, or the apibf his or her personal estate, to satisfy the
financial obligations contained in this Agreemeytiaving made gifts of real or personal
property, or by engaging in risky or inappropriatgivities (e.g. Gambling, etc.) after submitting a
financial statement or after acceptance into then@anity, Community reserves the right to
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terminate this Agreement. If Resident experiengestial difficulty, the following provisions
will apply:

a) Failure to Make Payments.

If Resident fails to make any of the Monthly Fegrpants at the required time, or
to pay any other amounts shown on the monthlyrsi@té within ten (10) days of said
statement, then the Community may give writtenaeoto Resident to pay all such
amounts then due. If Resident fails to comply wilich notice within fifteen (15) days,
Community may terminate this Agreement and shalvigle Resident with a refund, if any,
to which Resident shall be entitled at the timsuwth termination.

b) Special Consideration.

Without in any way qualifying the right of Communib terminate this Agreement,
Community's policy is that, if the sole reasonrionpayment is insufficient funds which
insufficiency is beyond the control of Resideng @ommunity will review the matter with
the Resident. If the Resident presents facts tisdify special financial consideration,
Community may partially subsidize, in its sole agolute discretion, Resident's Monthly
Fee provided that such subsidy can be granted wiihgpairing the ability of the
Community to continue its objectives while opergton a sound financial basis. All
determinations made by the Community concerningythating or continuing of special
financial consideration shall be made in good faithshall be final, and any such
determination shall be regarded as a confidemaasaction between the Community and
Resident except for reports required by regulatorgther governmental bodies.

It shall be a condition of receiving a subsidy tthet Resident shall represent that
they have not made any gift or other transfer oheyoor personal property in
contemplation of the execution of this Agreemensubsequently, which would impair
the Resident’s ability or the ability of the Resitls estate to satisfy the financial
obligations under this Agreement. When the Resisidmonthly Fee is subsidized wholly
or partly by the Community, the Resident may nokengifts of his or her property without
the Community’s written consent.

The Community will review such special considerabn an annual basis.

¢) Reduction of Income.

Resident certifies that his or her sources obnme are adequate to meet his or her
financial responsibility to the Community and toehand pay any additional cost to
Resident and to pay personal and incidental exgetsgng the period of residency. If
Resident'sources of income become inadequate to meet tagagements, Resident will
make every reasonable effort to obtain assistanece public benefits to the extent that
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Resident is eligible to receive them, includingt bot limited to Federal, State or County
aid or assistance, aid to the blind, veterans'fiisnetc. Resident agrees that he or she will
apply for and diligently seek such benefits. If Rest fails to make such application,
Community has the right to terminate this Agreenamnprovided herein.

d) Subsidy by the Community.

Should the Community subsidize Resident's Morfielg, Resident agrees that the
refundable portion of Resident's Entrance feel sleatharged and reduced by an amount
equal to the subsidy provided by Community to tkiert that such refundable portion
exists. Further, Resident agrees that any propleatyhe or she owns at or subsequent to
his or her entry into the Community and remainihtha time of his or her death, is to be
transferred to the Community for the purpose oayamg (at least to the extent of the value
of such property) an amount equal to the aggregjataunt of subsidy furnished by the
Community during the period of residency. This Agrent shall operate as a grant,
assignment, transfer and conveyance to the Comynoinguch property, or an interest in
such property, and may be enforced as a claim sighie Resident's estate, and to effect
such assignment and to enable Community to enfarck claim, Resident shall execute
such further documents, instruments or agreemsuts, as stock powers, financing
statements, deeds, bills of sale, mortgages, antikdy as the Community shall deem
necessary or appropriate to protect or perfecigtd, interest and claim granted in this
section. Community may, from time to time, but asd than annually, request financial
statements and tax returns from any Resident wiklosehly Fee is subsidized by the
Community. This provision shall apply whether ot Resident is in residence at the
Community at the time of death. A Resident whauisssdized by the Community may be
required to move to an alternate or less expensiiteas determined in the sole judgment
or discretion of Community.

11. Termination of Agreement.

a) Prior to Occupancy.

If Resident expires or if Resident or the persmviding Resident's Advance Fee
notifies the Community in writing of Resident’s eli®n to withdraw or terminate this
Agreement before Resident has moved in and occagdiesng Accommodation, this
Agreement shall be automatically terminated. Irhstese, Resident or Resident's estate
shall be entitled to a refund as provided hereinepting, however, those costs specifically
incurred by Community at the request of Residedtasset forth on Schedule "A",
attached hereto, to the extent that those costs maralready paid by Resident.

b) After Occupancy.
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1) By Resident.

Resident has the right, at any time, to termitisiseAgreement by delivery to the
Community of a written notice of his or her intemtito do so. The written notice need
not cite a specific reason for the terminationibahall state a date when the termination
is to become effective, and on or prior to sucle ddsident shall move from the
Community and release the Living Accommodation. Agrynination date less than
ninety (90) days after the date of notice mustgyg@ved by the Community; if such
earlier date is not approved, then terminationldlekffective ninety (90) days after the
date of notice. On the effective date of such teation, Resident's obligation to continue
Monthly Fee payments shall cease and Residentlshalhtitled to a refund of the
Advance Fee as provided in this Agreement, exeapthbse costs specifically incurred
by the Community at the request of Resident argkaforth on Schedule "A", to the
extent that those costs were not already paid Isydeet.

2) By Community.

Community reserves the right to terminate this &gment upon Resident’s
default and/or for just cause (as described belbaged upon the judgment of the
Community, by serving upon Resident written nob€éermination specified to be
effective on a date not less than thirty (30) dayslater than one hundred twenty (120)
days after the date of said notice. Community teayinate this Agreement (1) if
Resident makes any material misrepresentation @soon on his or her application ; or
(2) if the Resident’s personal physician determmrethe Community determines through
the assessment of its Medical Director or othetifiigd nursing or medical professional
that theResident's continued presence in the Living Accontation is either dangerous
or detrimental to the health, safety or peacéeResident, to other Residents of Brooks
Estates, or to other persons on the premise&3)if Resident shall be in a breach of the
terms of this Agreement. On or before the termaratate in any such written notice,
Resident shall quit and vacate the Living Accomntiodia Once fully vacated from the
Living Accommodation, Resident's obligation to éone Monthly Fee payments shall
cease and Resident shall be entitled to receieéuad of the Advance Fee as provided in
this Agreement.

3) Death of Resident.

a) Unless sooner terminated by its provisions, Algeeement shall
terminate upon the death of the Resident, at wimeé all obligations of the
Community under this Agreement other than thosatirgj to a refund of the
entrance fee and/or health care reserve allowamcetemoval of personal
property, shall cease. Any personal effects of dRagiin the Living
Accommodation occupied by Resident shall be retbas®&esident's Executor,
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Administrator, or personal Representative, or teeopersons entitled by law to
receive them. Time frames and provisions relateétieaemoval of Resident’s
personal property are addressed below in sectiofligobligation to pay the
Monthly Fee shall cease on the date when the dategersonal effects have
been removed from the living accommodation.

b) If Resident occupies the Living Accommodatiomily with another,
then on the death of such Resident, and providaictile surviving Resident
continues to occupy the Living Accommodation, thevAnce Fee and Health
Care Reserve allowance shall continue to be helddmgmunity to be refunded
upon termination by the surviving Resident as mediin this Agreement.

12. Refunds of Entrance Fee and Health Care Reserv

a) Termination After Occupancy.

If Resident terminates this Agreement after hgwiocupied the unit, Resident or
Resident's estate shall be entitled to a refurtdetinused portion of the Health Care
Reserve. The refund of the Entrance Fee is datedrdased on the entire amount of the
Entrance Fee, reduced by 4.167 tenths of a pef@d7%) per month (5% per year), for
each month or portion thereof of occupancy, upntaaimum of twenty five percent
(25%) of the entir&ntrance Fee. After sixty (60) months of occupaseyenty five
percent (75%) of the entrance fee will be refuneabl

b) Time for Payment of Refunds.

Any refund of the Entrance Fee or Health Care Resghall be payable after
fifteen (15) days of vacating the Living Accommadatbut no later than sixty (60) days
after the Resident ceases to occupy the Living Acnodation and removal of all
personal effects and items.

13. Rights and Obligations of Resident as to Ptgpe

The rights and obligations of the Resident agtperty are as follows:

a) Rights to Real Property.

The rights and privileges of Resident, as grantgdih, do not include any right,
title, or interest whether legal, equitable or ottise, in or to any part of the real
property, including land, buildings, improvementdigtures owned or administered by
Community, except the right granted to Resideneineder to occupy the Living
Accommodation in accordance with the terms of A&gseement. Resident’s rights are for
services as granted herein on a contractual kasilsnot by way of any legal or equitable
ownership or other interest in the real propertyy Aights, privileges, or other benefits
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arising under this Agreement or from the paymerarof fees herein provided or hereafter
paid shall be subordinate and inferior to all magees, deeds of trust or any other
financing obligations on any of the premises ot peaperties of the Community, to
secure loans or advances made to Community ongtsessors, now outstanding or made
in the future, and subordinate and inferior tcaatlendments, modifications, and
replacements, or refunds thereof, and Resideneaghat, upon request of Community,
or the holder of any such instrument, that he ensiti execute and deliver any
documents which are alleged to be necessary oireegio effect or evidence such
subordination.

b) Rights to Personal Property of Living Accomratan.

As in the case of real estate, Resident has nt tit, or interest, legal,
equitable, or otherwise in or to any part of thespaal property owned by Community,
including carpets, stove, refrigerator, dishwashasher and dryer, telephone equipment,
garage door openand fixtures, etc. in the Living Accommodation, eveup-graded at
Resident's cost and, also, all furniture, furnigsiand fixtures in all common areas and
facilities.

c) Responsibility for Damages.

Any loss or damage to real or personal propertgahmunity, caused by the
negligence (as determined by the Community) ofid®ed, or Resident's guests, shall be
charged to and paid for by Resident. The Commuimtigs sole discretion, may deduct
such loss or damage from the Resident’s SecuripoBie Similarly, if any negligence of
any of the above-mentioned damages results inyinijlmess of, or damage to, any other
Resident, Community assumes no responsibility foereand Resident hereby releases
and discharges Community from any injury or damageesident's personal property
caused by the fault or negligence of other Resglehthe Community, or their guests.

d) Policy Regarding Pets.

Resident may have a common household pet as tpedrim the Pet Policy and
Agreement that must be signed by all residentsingsto keep a pet. No more than one
dog or cat is permitted at a time, and the numbdrtgpe of other kinds of household pets
may also be restricted at the discretion of the @amity as described in the Pet Policy and
Agreement.

e) Responsibility of Protection of Resident'sgmby.

Community shall not be responsible for the losargf personal property belonging
to Resident due to theft, fire, or any cause, wnéasd property shall be specifically
entrusted in writing to the care and control of @@nmunity accompanied by an itemized
appraisal, and then only for lack of ordinary darsafeguard and account for such
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property. Resident agrees Community is not resptefor personal injury to other
Residents or guests within Resident's Living Accadation, and shall have the
responsibility, at his or her own expense, of powg and maintaining a standard property
and liability insurance policy (tenant homeowneas)d to file a copy of said policy or
certificate of insurance detailing the coveragéwiite Community. If Resident is no longer
able to occupy the Living Accommodation, or hasieeghy Community shall have the right,
at Resident's expense, to remove, within a perdddaexceed thirty (30) days, all

personal property of Resident frdns or her Living Accommodation and to store the
same, at Resident's expense and risk. If the progleall be stored in a commercial storage
warehouse or commercial storage facility, Commusiisll have no responsibility for such
property after it has been placed in storage arsideet, or Resident's estate, shall be liable
for all storage fees incurred. Resident shall, upoawing to the Community, designate to
whom such property should be delivered upon Resglerability to occupy Living
Accommodation or upon death.

14. Right of Entry.

The Resident recognizes and accepts the Commsinidyit and responsibility to enter
Living Accommodation from time to time in ordercarry out the purpose and intent of this
Agreement. The purposes for which such entry manaee include but are not limited to a)
performance of scheduled housekeeping dutiessbprese to the medical alert system c) response
to the fire alarm system d) situations in which Resident is reported missing or as having not
responded to calls, and f) maintenance. The Contmratognizes the Resident’s right to privacy
and the Community’s responsibility to limit entrythe Living Accommodation for emergencies,
maintenance and housekeeping work as set forthisrparagraph.

The Community will make an annual inspection & liking unit and reserves the right to
make additional inspections as needed at the ssteetion of the Community.

15. Arrangement for Guardianship and Residentat&s

a) Power of Attorney.

Resident agrees to execute, prior to occupancgnargl power of attorney
appointing an attorney-in-fact, whose power ofraity shall contain a clause providing
that the power of attorney shall survive the incetepce of the Resident. A copy of said
power of attorney shall be provided to the Communit

b) Will.

If not previously made, Resident agrees, withie¢h{3) months after the date of this
Agreement, to make a will providing for disposahid or her furniture and possessions at
Community and providing the appointment of an Exexcaof his or her estate.

c) Other Arrangements.
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The Resident agrees to provide the Community vaghfollowing information
within ninety (90) days after the Occupancy Datdvance Directives, name and address
of the funeral director with whom Resident has maigtangements, the location of the
Resident’s Will, the name and address of the Rasglawyer and executor, the names
and addresses of any banks trust officers, efornmation necessary to complete a death
certificate, and whom to notify in case of deatitJuding the person to whom the
Resident’s personal property is to be released.

16. Guest Privileges.

Resident has the right to have guests visit hiseoiLiving Accommodation, but such
visits shall be limited to thirty (30) days per yeanless the Community grants special permission
for longer periods of stay.

17. Transferability.

The rights and privileges of Resident under thgge®ment to the Living Accommodation
are personal to the Resident and cannot be traedfer assigned by act of Resident, or by any
proceeding at law, or otherwise. If any personepthan the person who has executed this
Agreement, commences to live in Resident's Living@nmodation without following proper
procedures as established by the Community anaisgdrthrough the Community
administration, Community shall have the rightéoinate this Agreement.

18. Community's Policy Regarding Subsequent Maeriaf a Resident or Subsequent Joint
Occupancy with a Resident

In the event that Resident marries a non-residéite occupying the Living
Accommodation and desires that his or her spouse ghe Living Accommodation, such spouse
must comply with the entrance procedures as stt fiothis Agreement. Likewise, in the event
that a non-resident applies to occupy a Living Acowodation jointly with a current Resident,
such non-resident must comply with the entrancequores as set forth in this Agreement. In the
event such spouse or non-resident seeking jointpawy is accepted as a Resident, this
Agreement shall be terminated and a refund of ttheaAice Fee as provided herein shall be paid to
Resident. Resident and Resident's spouse, orReisitlent as the case may be, shall thereupon
enter into a new Resident Agreement and shall ipaytten-current Advance Fee and Monthly Fee
for the unit. In the event such spouse or non esgideeking joint occupancy is not accepted as a
Resident, Resident may terminate this Agreemerstuyaunt to its provisions and receive a refund as
provided herein.

19. Notices.

All notices to be given in accordance with thisségment are considered properly given if
and when delivered personally or sent by mail #e\is:
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As to Community: As to Resident:

Administrator At Resident's last known
Brooks Estates Address

209 Roberts Road _or

Pittston, PA 18640 Resident’'s Community Addres

20. Miscellaneous Provisions.

a) Entire Agreement.

This Agreement, together with the application fdhat includes a financial
statement and medical records constitute the esgireement between the Community and
Resident. Resident warrants that all statement®rhackin are true and correct.
Community is not liable and shall not be bound by statements, representations, or
promises made by any person representing or pungdd represent Community, unless
such statements, representations or promises t@tbein this Agreement.

b) Rules and Regulations.

Resident will observe all rules and regulationg tha Community shall from time
to time adopt for the convenience, comfort, safetg well being of all Residents and the
Community which shall upon adoption form a partto$ Agreement. Resident does
hereby understand that a violation of such rulesragulations, including the Pet Policy,
may result in termination of this Agreement. Ther@aunity reserves the right to adopt
policies, procedures, rules and regulations reggrésidency not inconsistent with the
provisions of this Agreement, and the Residentexyte abide by such policies,
procedures, rules and regulations.

c) Waiver of Continuing Care Provider Registratamd Disclosure Act.

No act, agreement, or statement of any Residewf, amy individual purchasing
services for a Resident under this Agreement taighrservices to the Resident, shall
constitute a valid waiver of any provision of thenRsylvania Continuing Care Provider
Registration and Disclosure Act, Act No. 82 of 19B4sident shall receive, at least
annually, a disclosure statement as provided imtbeesaid Continuing Care Provider
Registration and Disclosure Act.

d) Invalidity or Severability.

If any portion of this Agreement shall, for anysen, be held to be invalid or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction that it is soutghbe enforced, such invalidity and
unenforceability shall not affect any other prammsof this Agreement and it shall be
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construed as if such invalid or unenforceable isiom were omitted.

e) Amendments or Modifications.

This Agreement may be amended or modified onlyriing executed by an
authorized official of the Community and by Residétolicies and procedures governing
the operation of the Community may be amended dlified only in writing executed by
an authorized official of the Community.

f) Binding Effect.

This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inarelte benefit of the Community
and the Resident, as well as their respective ssocg, assigns and personal
representatives.

g) Schedules Attached.

Attached hereto iNotice of Right to Rescindfor use by Resident. Also attached
hereto and marked Schedule "A" is a list of iteh@ have been purchased and installed in,
or for, the Resident's Living Accommodation at teguest of Resident along with the cost
of such items. Attached hereto and marked Schéaules a schedule of all property
included in Living Accommodation as well as thentigy thereof. Attached and marked
Schedule "C" is a list of medical and other sewial®ng with the fees/charges for such
services available to Resident.

h) Liability for Health Care Costs.

The Community does not undertake to provide hezdte of any nature under this
Agreement and therefore will not be liable to aeglth care provider for services rendered
to Resident.

i) Right to Organize, Residents Association oriékasts Council.

Residents living in the Community shall have tigat of self-organization. The
Community through its Board of Directors or throwgydesignated representative shall
hold annual meetings with the Residents of thdifaéor the purpose of free discussion of
subjects that may include income, expenditures fimadcial matters as they apply to the
Community and proposed changes in policies, programd services. All Residents shall
receive at least seven (7) days notice of eachaamneeting.

j) Changes Because of Regulatory Agencies.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemehe Community shall have
the right to alter your Living Accommodation to néee requirements of law, the
regulations of regulatory agencies, or other dolystituted authorities or agencies.
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k) Designation of and Delegation by the Admirasdr.

The Community may, from time to time, designateAaministrator to carry out
the operating policies and procedures and to cdrtdbaomperations of the Community. It is
understood that any authority, or responsibilityeg by this Agreement to the
Community's Administrator may be delegated by hirher to any one or more members
of the Community’s staff.

l) Gratuities.
Residents living in the Community shall not givey &ips or gratuities to employees
of the Community, whether in cash or otherwise dioy service required to be provided by

the Community to the Resident pursuant to this Agrent or pursuant to law.

m) Acknowledgment.

Resident acknowledges reading this agreementesedving a copy thereof.

n) No Discrimination.

It is understood and agreed that the Community sdResidents without regard to
race, religion, color, sex, national origin, sexoaéntation, marital status or sponsor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement theddyyear first
above written.

Date:

Resident

Resident

UNITED METHODIST HOMES

Brooks Estates

BY:
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BROOKS ESTATES

Notice of Right to Rescind

DATE RESCISSION PERIOD BEGINS:

You may rescind and terminate your Resident Agezgrwithout penalty or forfeiture
within seven (7) days of the above date. You ateeguired to move into the Brooks Estates
continuing care community before the expiratiothié seven (7) day period. No other agreement
or statement you sign shall constitute a waiveyonir right to rescind your Agreement within the
seven (7) day period.

To rescind your Resident Agreement, mail or delaveigned and dated copy of this
notice, or any other dated written notice, lettelegram, or FAX stating your desire to rescind to
Brooks Estates, United Methodist Homes, at 209 Relb®oad, Pittston, Pennsylvania, 18640 not
later than midnight of

Brooks Estates

DATE: BY:

Pursuant to this notice, | hereby cancel my Residgneement.

Dated Signed
Prospective Resident’s Signature
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BROOKS ESTATES

Schedule A

List of Items Purchased and Installed at Request dResident

Number Ite Description Amount
Date:
Resident
Resident

UNITED METHODIST HOMES

Brooks Estates

BY:
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BROOKS ESTATES

Schedule B

List of Personal Property Provided By Community

Number of ltems/Description Serial Number

=
1)

Stove

Refrigerator

Microwave

Dishwasher

Washer

Dryer

Garbage Disposal

Smoke Detectors

Automatic Garage Door
Opener

Wall-to-Wall Carpeting

Draperies

Telephones (2)

Other Items:
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BROOKS ESTATES

Schedule C

List of Services Available to Resident at AdditionaCharge

Service

Barber and Beauty

Fee/Charge

Standard fees at United Méshétbmes Wesley Village Campus facilities

Physical, Occupational or Speech Therapy Stangasiat United Methodist Homes Wesley Village Casnipwilities

Dentistry

Podiatry

Optometry

X-Ray Services

Laboratory Services

Medical Supplies

Psychiatric Counseling

Overnight Accommodations for Guests
Resident Meals

Guest Meals

Housekeeping

Nursing Care

Personal Care or Assisted Living
Limited, scheduled local transportation

Other:

Directly billed by third-party proead
Directly billed by third-party provide
Directly billed by third-party provide
Directly billed by third-partyqvider
Directly billed by third-paprovider
Standard fees at United Metstddomes Wesley Village Campus facilities
Directly billed by thipauty provider
Standard & &iited Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campudlifaes
Standard fees at United Methétimes Wesley Village Campus facilities
Standard fees at United Methodishés Wesley Village Campus facilities
Standard fees at United Methéthstes Wesley Village Campus facilities
Standard fees at United Methddiishes Wesley Village Campus facilities
Standard feéiited Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campus faed

Standaessfat United Methodist Homes Wesley Village Caniaciities
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BROOKS ESTATES

Resident Agreement
Lease Plan

Community: Brooks Estates
A Division of the
United Methodist Homes
209 Roberts Road
Pittston, Pennsylvania 18640

Resident (s): (Name)
(Name)
(Address

Living Accommodation: Unit located at Road

Brooks Estates

Pittston, Pennsylvania 18640

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of , 20 between
THE UNITED METHODIST HOMES (“United Methodist Homes "), a Pennsylvania
nonprofit corporation with offices at Pittston, Reglvania, which owns and opera@®oks
Estates a continuing care community (hereafter called*@@mmunity” ) and

(Names)

(hereinafter refeaedhether this Agreement is executed by
one or two individuals, afResident) who has applied for and who has been approved fo
admission to the continuing care community by BoBktates.

Subject to the signing of this Agreement, Commuaitd Resident, intending to be
legally bound, hereby agree to the following teand conditions:



Specific Lease Terms

The relationship between the Community and the deesi under the terms and
conditions of this Resident Agreement/Lease Planthst of a Landlord and Tenant
relationship. The specific lease terms and conastimcluded in this section are intended to
define such Landlord and Tenant relationship initamid to the other terms and conditions
contained in general terms, paragraphs 1 througbel®w. If any of the specific lease terms
contained in this section conflict, contradict arpticate the terms and conditions in the
general terms section, paragraphs 1 through 19bhéhe terms and conditions contained in
this specific lease term section shall prevail.

The Community and the Resident agree to lease dttage unit (“Unit”) on the
following terms:
Lease Terms

Term: One Year Yearly fee/rent:
Beginning date: Monthly fee/rent:
Ending date: Security deposit: $1,000

Lease Conditions

1. Use: The Unit must be used only as a private 6. Liability: Community is not liable for loss, expense
residence of the resident. Only a resident namesleab | or damage to any person or property, unless due to
may use the Unit and use of the Unit remains stibigec | Community’s negligence. Community is not liable to
limits on who may legally occupy a Unit of thisaiz Resident for permitting or refusing entry of anyami®
the Unit.

Resident must pay for damages suffered andnegse
of Community relating to any claim arising from aagt
or neglect of Resident. If an action is broughtiasta
Community because of Resident’s act or neglect,
Resident will defend Community at Resident’s expens
with an attorney of the Community’s choice.

Resident is responsible for all acts, or neglefc
Resident’s family, employees, guests or invitees.

2. Failure to Give PossessionCommunity shall not be| 7. Assignment and SubleaseResident must not assign
liable if it cannot give Resident possession on the all or part of this Lease, or sublet all or partted Unit,
beginning of the Term. Rent starts at the beginoirntipe | or permit any other person to use the Unit.

Term unless the Community cannot give possess@n
shall then be payable when possession is available)
Community will notify Resident when possession is
available. The ending date of the Term will notrae
other than under the terms of this Lease Agreement.

)

3. Rent, Added Rent: The rent for each month must be8. Resident’s Default: Community may give Resident a
paid by the first day, at the Community’s address. termination notice (buCommunity is not obligated to
Community need not give notice to pay the rent.tRen| give notice). If given, the termination notice vwgthte the
must be paid in full without deduction. The firsbnth’s | date the Term will end. Resident must leave the bimi




rent (and any partial month’s rent) will be paidesh
Resident signs this Lease. Resident may be regtgred
pay other charges to Community under the termhisf t
Lease. Whether or not stated as such, those dibheges
are considered “added rent”. Added rent will béekiil
and is payable as rent, together with the next hipnt
rent due. If Resident fails to pay added rent oreti
Community shall have the same rights against Reside
as if Resident failed to pay rent.

give Community the keys on or before the termimatio
date. Resident continues to be responsible agistate
this Agreement.

If this Lease is terminated, or Community takask
the Unit, the following takes place:
Rent and added rent for the unexpired term
becomes due and payable.
«Community may relet the Unit and anything

it. Community may charge rent (or no rent) and

give allowances to the new resident. Commu
may, at Resident’s expense, do any work
Community feels needed to put the Unit in go
repair and to prepare it for renting. Resident
remains liable and is not released except as
provided by law.

nity

4. Term: The Term will end on the date stated above
unless extended under the terms of this Agreement.
Notices are not required to end the Term.

9. Quiet Enjoyment: Subject to the terms of this Leas
as long as Resident is not in default, Resident may
peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the fdnit
the Term.

5. Security: Resident gave security to Community in t

a Bank of the Community’s choice and delivery a$ th
Lease is notice of the deposit. Community will fiioti
Resident of the Bank’s name and address in whieh th
security is deposited, as may be required by law.

If Resident fails to perform any term in thigdse

(such as paying rent on time) Community may use the

security. If the Community uses the security, Rexsid
shall (upon notice from Community) restore the siégu
That amount is due, when billed, as added renallAt
times Community shall have the amount of security
stated above.

If Resident fully performs all terms of thisdse, then
Community will return the security being held, in
accordance with law. Resident may not apply sectoit
pay rent.

Community may put security anywhere permittgd b
law. Resident’s security will earn interest onlyemhand
as required by law.

n}

he
amount stated above. The security has been depdsite




General Terms

1. Lease Plan Term.

Beginning with the date on which Resident moves @td occupies a cottage unit (the
“Occupancy Date”) at the Community, the Communrsiybject to the terms hereof, will furnish
Resident a cottage unit (“Living Accommodation”)gé&ther with the Community's services
specified in this Agreement, for a one (1) yeatiqeeior for such shorter period as shall apply
under this Agreement in the event it is termingiatsuant to its terms. The Occupancy Date for
all purposes under this agreement shall be , or the date on which
Resident first personally occupies the Living Acenadation, whichever occurs first.

After the expiration of the initial one (1) yearrte of this Lease Plan, the Resident may
continue to lease the Living Accommodation from @@mmunity on a year-to-year basis at the
then current monthly fee, provided that the Commnyuhas not notified the Resident that the
Community is terminating the occupancy of the RessidEither the Community or the Resident
may terminate this Plan upon thirty (30) days pugitten notice to the other. However, until
this Lease Plan is terminated, the terms and pomgsof this Lease Plan, as modified from time
to time, shall apply. Should the Resident electaioninate this Lease Plan in favor of the
Advance Fee Plan available at the Community, tr@deat may do so within one (1) year of the
Occupancy Date through the signing of a Residenmeément Advance Fee Plan providing for
the then-current Advance Fee and Monthly Fee.

2. Security Deposit.

Resident shall pay to the Community a Security Bapmd $1,000 (One Thousand) dollars
for the use and occupancy of the Living Accommaatipon application for residency. This
Security Deposit shall be refundable as providethisi Agreement. The Security Deposit will be
held in escrow, prior to the Occupancy Date.

If Resident elects to rescind this Agreement wienen (7) days of the date on which this
Agreement is executed, Resident shall be entitedh trefund of all amounts paid to the
Community including interest. Attached to this Agmeent is a Notice of Right to Rescind that
Resident may utilize in order to cancel this AgreaiIf Resident expires before the beginning
date, or through illness, injury or incapacity ieg@uded from becoming a resident under the
terms of this Agreement, this Agreement is autocadlti rescinded and the Resident or his legal
representative shall receive a full refund (witlhid days of the Community receiving written
notice of termination) of all monies paid to the n@uounity, except those costs specifically
incurred by the Community at the request of theid®eg and set forth in writing in the attached
Schedule "A", signed by the parties to this Agreeimdf Resident elects to rescind this
Agreement more than seven (7) days after it is @eelc but prior to occupancy, Resident shall
be entitled to a refund of all amounts paid exalgdany interest earned by Brooks Estates less
any expenses incurred by the Community at Resglmguest.



3. Monthly Fee/Rental Payment (*“Monthly Fee”).

In addition to the other amounts paid by the Regide the Community under this
Agreement, Resident will pay to the Community a khbnFee as rent of $ each
month in advance (on or before the 1st day of eachth).

The Monthly Fee is based on the number of persaospying the cottage unit. If two
Residents sign this Agreement, the Monthly Fee lallreduced to the single occupancy rate if
one of the two expires or permanently withdrawsnfrine Community effective on the date of
the withdrawal. If one of the Residents tempoyawithdraws from the Community and is
admitted to another level of care at a United MdistoHomes facility, the Monthly Fee will be
adjusted as of the first day of the month followisigch admission to the United Methodist
Homes facility. Upon return to the Community franother United Methodist Homes facility,
the Monthly Fee will be adjusted as of the firstyd# the month following return to the
Community to the appropriate multiple-occupanceratThe Community reserves the right to
establish monthly fees of a different amount forspas being admitted to residency after the
date hereof, and the fees charged such other gens&d not be uniform with, or proportional to,
those charged to the Resident under this Agreemdiite Monthly Fee for persons being
admitted to residency after the date hereof wiffibas of the date of occupancy.

The Monthly Fee may be adjusted by the Commundynftime to time to reflect factors
affecting the cost of operations including actuaém@ting expenses, the Consumer Price Index,
the cost of complying with governmental regulatiaihe maintenance of necessary reserves, and
to ensure the financial stability of the Communithe Community agrees that, in the exercise of
its sole discretion, which shall be binding on Resident, it will endeavor to maintain the
Monthly Fee at the lowest feasible figure whiclthe judgment of the Board of Directors of the
United Methodist Homes is consistent with soundaiiicial operation and maintenance of the
quality of service the Community has undertakempravide. No increase or decrease shall be
effective until the Resident shall have receivadyi{30) days notice of such change, except for
changes required by Federal, State or local lawss ror regulations. In the event more than one
person occupies the Living Accommodation, then eaah person shall be jointly asdverally
liable and responsible for payment of the MontheFThe obligation to pay the Monthly Fee
shall commence from and after the Occupancy Date.

The Community will present a detailed monthly sta¢at including the Monthly Fee for
the following month, any charges for additionalvesgs rendered during the preceding month,
and any other amounts due the Community. The MpriBE is due in advance, and it, and all
other charges appearing on the monthly statemieal, Ise paid to the Community on or before
the 1st day of the calendar month following theedait the statement. If the Resident does not
pay the Monthly Fee on or before the 10th day af thonth, Resident shall be in default under
this Agreement and subject to termination of thgre®ment as provided herein. The resident
will be responsible for the Monthly Fee regardle§sibsence from the unit for hospitalization,
personal care, nursing care or other reasonseloake of absence for vacation, the resident shall



receive a reduction in the Monthly Fee of fifty kdo$ ($50) per month if absent for more than
thirty (30) consecutive days upon ten (10) daysrpiotice to the Community.

4. Accommodations Provided.

a.) Living Accommodation:

From and after the Occupancy Date, Residastthe right to occupy and use the
Living Accommodation selected by Resident subjectchange only as hereinafter provided.
Subject to the right to have guests under ParagtEphhereof, at no time shall Living
Accommodation be occupied by more than two persofisleast one Resident occupying the
Living Accommodation must be 65 years of age oenld

b.) Furnishings:

Community will furnish wall-to-wall carpeting, drapes, washer, dryer, refrigerator,
stove, microwave, dishwasher, garbage disposalkesntetectors, telephones and automatic
garage door openers in the Living Accommodationesehfurnishings, even if upgraded at
Resident's request and expense, shall remain topeqy of the Community. All other
furnishings shall be provided by Resident, subjecthe supervision of, and approval by, the
Community and shall remain Resident's personalgstgp

5. Services Provided by Community to ResidentReasident Duties.

a.) Utilities and Taxes:

Community will furnish gas, electricity, heatiy-conditioning, hot/cold water, sewer,
and basic cable television service in the Livingcdmmodation. Garbage and trash removal is
also available from collection points. Resident listie responsible for telephone service.
Community will also be responsible for real estabees assessed against its property, provided,
however, that Community may, in addition to the My Fee, impose surcharges if Community
shall make a good faith determination that incregsiosts for the above-mentioned items make
surcharges necessary. Community shall give Resitdty (30) days notice in advance of the
date when surcharges are due.

b.) Telephone:

The Community will provide telephone equipmentthe Living Accommodation.
Telephone service shall be at the expense of tbal®d.

c.) Housekeeping:

Community will provide once-a-month light lsakeeping (approximately one hour) in
Resident's cottage unit and one general annualinlgaResident will be responsible for all other
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housekeeping functions. Community will also proviteusekeeping services to the common
areas. Pursuant to Community’s Housekeeping RoR@sident will be granted an option to
decline Community-provided housekeeping servicekraoeive a credit to the Monthly Fee.

d.) Maintenance and Repairs:

Necessary repairs, maintenance and repkteoh property and equipment owned by
the Community will be performed and provided by @oumity except that the cost thereof shall
be paid by Resident if caused by the negligenceléteymined by the Community) of Resident.
Repairs, maintenance, and replacement of propdrfgesident shall be the responsibility of
Resident.

e.) Structural Changes:

All structural or physical changes of anyndi within or about the Living
Accommodation will be made only upon first beingogved in writing by the Community and,
upon approval, will be subject to the Communitygervision. The cost of any such change
requested by Resident shall be borne by Residatgssi otherwise agreed to in writing, and all
such changes immediately become and remain thegpemhproperty of the Community.

f.) Redecoration:

Redecoration of the Living Accommodationaafdition to, or other than that scheduled
by the Community, will require the written approwdlthe Community and will be at Resident's
expense. Changes or replacement of the furnisipngaded by the Community in the Living
Accommodation vests title thereto in Community,assl otherwise provided in writing.

g.) Grounds:

Community will furnish basic grounds-keepingye including lawn service and snow
removal. With the Community’s approval, Residentaynelect to plant and then maintain a
specific area adjacent to the Resident’s Living@uamodation.

h.) Food and Meals:

The Monthly Fee does not include the cosiehls; all meals shall be at the expense
of the Resident.

i.) Local Transportation:

The Monthly Fee does not include the costrahgportation; the Community will
provide limited scheduled local transportationRasidents at the expense of the Resident.



J.) Parking:
The Community will provide and maintain oparkpng areas.

k.) Community and Wellness Center Facility:

Residents, in common with others, may ume dommunity room, library, chapel,
cinema room, therapeutic pool, fully equipped f#tslexercise room and other amenities that,
from time to time, comprise the Community and Wedls Center Facility.

The average annual costs to the Communityproviding the accommodations
identified in Section 4 and the services providgdhe Community to the Resident as identified
in this section are_$

6. Health Care Services Excluded.

The Community does not undertake to provide hecdtfe services of any nature in its
Monthly Fee. The Community also does not undertakprovide health care services of any
nature in its Entrance Fee. When care is recaivenhg a stay at other facilities of the Wesley
Village Retirement Community or in the Living Accamdation, Residents are required to pay
for health care services including but not limitedhe following:

a.) Charges of any physician, podiatrist, or thista

b.) Prescription drugs and medical supplies.

c.) Vision, hearing, and dental care includingsalbplies, equipment, and appliances.

d.) Mental health services.

e.) Hospital charges.

f.) Other health related services the cost forcllare customarily charged to the Resident.

g.) Institutional health care including hospitate, nursing care, personal care, assisted
living care, home health care and other foofisstitutional health care.

The Community will not assume any liability forypaent of health care services
provided to a Resident because all such servieesxpressly excluded from Section 5 (Services
Provided by Community to Resident and Resident’'§d3)y Note: Under 31 PA. Code Section
151.8 (d), if the Community did provide health cassvices under its Resident Agreement, the
provider is to agree that the resident shall noliddde to a health care provider for health care
services rendered under the resident’'s agreeiimetite event a health care provider in such case
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seeks payment from the resident, the continuing pasvider shall assume liability for payment
of the health care services rendered, if the hezdtle services rendered are services which a
provider agreed to furnish to a resident in consitien of the resident’s payment of entrance and
periodic fees. In this case, however, the Commuumitgler this Resident Agreement expressly
excludes health care services to the resident,asnduch, does not assume any liability for
payment of health care services provided to a Rasid

7. Mental lliness or Dangerous Disease.

The Community is not designed to care for persah® are afflicted with
psychosis, serious mental illness, contagious ange@us diseases. If the Community
determines, in its sole and absolute discretibmpuigh the assessment of its Medical Director or
other qualified nursing or medical professionaltttfee Resident's continued presence in the
Living Accommodation is either dangerous or detniaé to the health, safety or peace of the
Resident or other Residents of Brooks Estates, therCommunity may transfer Resident, or
otherwise advise Resident to transfer to an apjaipfacility for such care. Upon such transfer,
this Agreement shall be subject to termination @wided for in this Agreement. In the event
Resident refuses to transfer to an appropriatéitiafor such care determined to be necessary by
the Community, this Agreement shall be subjecetmtnation as provided herein.

8. Relocation to a Different Accommodation.

Community may relocate a Resident to a differaminy Accommodation in the
Community substantially similar to that unit sedsttby Resident in this Agreement if it
determines in good faith that such move should bdarfor the benefit of the operation of the
Community, as determined by the Community in cdiasioin with the Resident's personal
physician and/or the Medical Director or other pssional staff when appropriate. In the event
of such relocation, Community shall assume respditgi for all reasonable moving and
relocation expenses of Resident. If Resident besoumable to properly maintain the Living
Accommodation either because of mental or physitsdbility, incapacity, incompetence, or
medical reasons of whatever nature, and Residentrised of occupancy in either the personal
care or nursing care units of the United MethoHistnes Wesley Village Campus, Community
shall give priority status to Resident in assigrting next available personal care or nursing care
bed to Resident. Although priority status may Ineeig to Resident for relocation within the
United Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campus undeich medical circumstances,
Community makes no guaranty that such a personal @anursing care bed is or will be
available.

If Resident elects to move to a different Livingodmmodation, such relocation
shall be permitted subject to availability. Wheardt becomes available, this Agreement shall be
terminated. Resident shall, upon occupancy of #éve unit, enter into a new Resident Agreement
and pay the then-current applicable Monthly FedHernew unit upon occupancy.

If two Residents occupying separate Living Accordatmns request a transfer to
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one of the two accommodations, and if the Commuagiyroves such transfer, this Agreement
shall be terminated. The Resident shall thereupber énto a new Resident Agreement and shall
pay the then-current Monthly Fee for the remainogrupied Living Accommodation. The
Monthly Fee will be the two-person rate for the a@mng unit occupied.

9. Application and Entrance Procedures.

a.) _Application for Residency.

Resident's application for residency in @@mmunity shall include, but may not be
limited to, the following:

1.) Application Form including financial statenten
2.) Medical Records

b.) Medical Policy.

It is the policy of the Community that on the dhagt the Resident enters into

residency in the Living Accommodation that he oe §le ambulatory, mentally alert and able to
live independently. The medical condition of Residghall be subject to review and verification
upon admission and annually thereafter through ssessment by the Resident’s personal
physician to be provided to the Community and/aotdigh the assessment of the Medical
Director or other qualified nursing or medical f@ssional of the Community who shall conduct
an examination of the Resident at Community's espaevhen requested by Community. Persons
who do not meet these qualifications may, with approval of the Community, nevertheless
enter into residency if his or her spouse or oth&lified co-resident is occupying the same unit
and is willing and able to provide the necessarg @nd assistance to said Resident failing to
meet such qualifications. In such circumstance, @ommunity may require proof to be
furnished from time to time that such care andsé@sce can be provided to such Resident by
the spouse or other co-resident in order to caetiresidency in the sole and absolute discretion
of Community.

When two persons have executed this Agreementthéintention of occupying the
same Living Accommodation and prior to enteringoimtccupancy, one of the Residents is
unable to meet the physical or medical requirem@nrt®ccupancy, the Community shall have
the option of either terminating this Agreement amdking a refund as provided in this
Agreement or of permitting the Resident who is Umalm meet the physical or medical
requirements of this Agreement to enter into agakcare or nursing care unit of the United
Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campus. The Comiyushall give priority status to such
Resident in assigning the next available persome¢ or nursing care bed to Resident at the
United Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campus, algioCommunity makes no guaranty that
such a bed is or will be available. The remainiogesident who has met all the physical or
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medical requirements may take possession of thied.ikccommodation as provided herein. If
the Resident occupying the personal care or nusang bed progresses to the point where he or
she can meet the conditions for entrance into tkende Accommodation as set forth in this
Agreement, he or she can then enter into said gisocommodation jointly applied for with the
other Resident .

c.) _Review of Financial Condition.

Prior to the date of entry into a Resident's LgvAccommodation, Resident shall
have a final review with the Community administrate other authorized person to review the
financial condition of Resident and to ensure thatadverse changes in the financial condition
of Resident have occurred subsequent to the execati the application form or financial
statement submitted which may render Resident en&blmeet the conditions of entrance
established, from time to time, by the CommunitytHe event Resident is unable to meet these
financial conditions, the Community may, at itsesdiscretion, terminate this Agreement prior to
Resident's occupancy in which event Resident wadeive a refund of all amounts paid in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

Resident will complete a financial condition stagnt and submit to Community
such financial condition statement and all othaaficial information reasonably requested for
review by Community on an annual basis. Commumiy terminate this agreement if Resident
fails, neglects or refuses to comply with this resfufor continuing financial information.

10. Policy Concerning Financial Difficulty.

Community declares it to be its policattiResident shall not be dismissed, nor
will Resident’'s Agreement be terminated, solely sase of Resident's financial inability to
continue to pay all or part of the Monthly Fee. Hwer, Resident's acceptance into the
Community has been based on facts recorded in &d&dapplication, by which facts
Community determined that Resident was able to rakelf the financial obligations specified
in this Agreement. If Resident adversely affects i her ability, or the ability of his or her
personal estate, to satisfy the financial obligeticontained in this Agreement by having made
gifts of real or personal property, or by engagingrisky or inappropriate activities (e.g.
Gambling, etc.) after submitting a financial staéatnor after acceptance into the Community,
Community reserves the right to terminate this &gment. If Resident experiences financial
difficulty, the following provisions will apply:

a.) Failure to Make Payments.

If Resident fails to make any of the Monthly Fespents at the required time, or
to pay any other amounts shown on the monthlyrsité within ten (10) days of said statement,
then the Community may give written notice to Residto pay all such amounts then due. If
Resident fails to comply with such notice withiftden (15) days, Community may terminate
this Agreement and shall provide Resident with fam&, if any, to which Resident shall be

13



entitled at the time of such termination.

b.)_Special Consideration.

Without in any way qualifying the right of Commtynito terminate this

Agreement, Community's policy is that, if the sad@ason for nonpayment is insufficient funds
which insufficiency is beyond the control of Regitlethe Community will review the matter
with the Resident. If the Resident presents faltg fustify special financial consideration,
Community may partially subsidize, in its sole aizbolute discretion, Resident's Monthly Fee
provided that such subsidy can be granted withoyttairing the ability of the Community to
continue its objectives while operating on a sotindncial basis. All determinations made by
the Community concerning the granting or continurigpecial financial consideration shall be
made in good faith but shall be final, and any sdettermination shall be regarded as a
confidential transaction between the Community &asident except for reports required by
regulatory or other governmental bodies.

It shall be a condition of receiving a subsidytitiee Resident shall represent that
they have not made any gift or other transfer oheyoor personal property in contemplation of
the execution of this Agreement, or subsequenthiclvwould impair the Resident’s ability or
the ability of the Resident’s estate to satisfy timancial obligations under this Agreement.
When the Resident’s Monthly Fee is subsidized whallpartly by the Community, the Resident
may not make gifts of his or her property withdwg Community’s written consent.

The Community will review such special considematon an annual basis.

c.) _Reduction of Income.

Resident certifies that his or her sources ofime@re adequate to meet his or her
financial responsibility to the Community and toeh@nd pay any additional cost to Resident
and to pay personal and incidental expenses dtmsgeriod of residency. If Resident's sources
of income become inadequate to meet these requitsiResident will make every reasonable
effort to obtain assistance from public benefitghe extent that Resident is eligible to receive
them, including, but not limited to Federal, StateCounty aid or assistance, aid to the blind,
veterans' benefits, etc. Resident agrees that hemwill apply for and diligently seek such
benefits. If Resident fails to make such appligati@ommunity has the right to terminate this
Agreement as provided herein.

d.)_Subsidy by the Community.

Should the Community subsidize Resident's Monffdg, Resident agrees that
any property that he or she owns at or subseqgoehistor her entry into the Community and
remaining at the time of his or her death, is tarbasferred to the Community for the purpose of
repaying (at least to the extent of the value a@hsproperty) an amount equal to the aggregate
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amount of subsidy furnished by the Community dutimg period of residency. This Agreement
shall operate as a grant, assignment, transfecameeyance to the Community of such property,
or an interest in such property, and may be enfbasea claim against the Resident's estate, and
to effect such assignment and to enable Commumintorce such claim, Resident shall execute
such further documents, instruments or agreemsuts) as stock powers, financing statements,
deeds, bills of sale, mortgages, and the like, rees @ommunity shall deem necessary or
appropriate to protect or perfect its right, insgtrand claim granted in this section. Community
may, from time to time, but no less than annuakyuest financial statements and tax returns
from any Resident whose Monthly Fee is subsidizgdhe Community. This provision shall
apply whether or not Resident is in residence @atGbmmunity at the time of death. A Resident
who is subsidized by the Community may be requicethove to an alternate or less expensive
unit as determined in the sole judgment or disoretif Community.

11. Termination of Agreement.

a.)_Prior to Occupancy.

If Resident expires or if Resident or the persmvigling Resident's Monthly Fee
notifies the Community in writing of Resident’s efien to withdraw or terminate this
Agreement before Resident has moved in and occugigsiving Accommodation, this
Agreement shall be automatically terminated. Inhsc&se, Resident or Resident's estate shall be
entitled to a refund as provided herein, exceptirayyever, those costs specifically incurred by
Community at the request of Resident and as s#t tor Schedule "A", attached hereto, to the
extent that those costs were not already paid Isydeet.

b.) _After Occupancy.

1.) By Resident.

Resident has the right, at any time, to ieate this Agreement by delivery to
the Community of a written notice of his or hereimtion to do so. The written notice need not
cite a specific reason for the termination buthalk state a date when the termination is to
become effective, and on or prior to such date deesishall move from the Community and
release the Living Accommodation. Any terminatiatedless than thirty (30) days after the date
of notice must be approved by the Community; if swarlier date is not approved, then
termination shall be effective thirty (30) dayseafthe date of notice. On the effective date of
such termination, Resident's obligation to contifdenthly Fee payments shall cease and
Resident shall be entitled to a refund as provigtedhis Agreement, except for those costs
specifically incurred by the Community at the resjuef Resident and as set forth on Schedule
"A", to the extent that those costs were not alygzdd by Resident.

2.) By Community.
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Community reserves the right to terminatis thgreement upon Resident’s
default and/or for just cause (as described belbaged upon the judgment of the Community,
by serving upon Resident written notice of termmraspecified to be effective on a date not less
than thirty (30) days nor later than one hundreenty (120) days after the date of said notice.
Community may terminate this Agreement (1) if desit makes any material misrepresentation
or omission on his or her application; or (2)h€tResident’s personal physician determines or
the Community determines through the assessmeits dfledical Director or other qualified
nursing or medical professional that thHResident's continued presence in the Living
Accommodation is either dangerous or detrimentahéohealth, safety or peace of the Resident,
to other Residents of Brooks Estates, or to opggsons on the premises; or (3) if Resident
shall be in a breach of the terms of this Agreem@ntor before the termination date in any such
written notice, Resident shall quit and vacate ltheng Accommodation. Once fully vacated
from the Living Accommodation, Resident's obligatim continue Monthly Fee payments shall
cease and Resident shall be entitled to receiefuad of the Advance Fee as provided in this
Agreement.

c.) _Death of Resident.

1.) Unless sooner terminated by its provisiohgs Agreement shall terminate
upon the death of the Resident, at which time hllgations of the Community under this
Agreement other than those relating to a refunthefSecurity Deposit, and removal of personal
property, shall cease. Any personal effects of dRegiin the Living Accommodation occupied
by Resident shall be released to Resident's Exedtiministrator, or personal Representative,
or to other persons entitled by law to receive th&meframes and provisions related to the
removal of Resident’s personal property are addcebglow in section 12. The obligation to pay
the Monthly Fee shall cease on the date when tbedgat's personal effects have been removed
from the living accommodation.

2.) If Resident occupies the Living Accommodatjomtly with others, then on
the death of such Resident, and provided that tineivéng Resident continues to occupy the
Living Accommodation, the Security Deposit shalhtioue to be held by Community to be
refunded upon termination by the surviving Residenprovided in this Agreement.

12. Rights and Obligations of Resident as to Ptgpe

The rights and obligations of the Residertbgsroperty are as follows:

a.)_Rights to Real Property.

The rights and privileges of Resident, as grah&ein, do not include any right,
title, or interest whether legal, equitable or otfise, in or to any part of the real property,
including land, buildings, improvements or fixturesyned or administered by Community,
except the right granted to Resident hereunder doupmy the Living Accommodation in
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accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Ressleights are for services as granted herein
on a contractual basis, and not by way of any legalquitable ownership or other interest in the
real property. Any rights, privileges, or other bBts arising under this Agreement or from the
payment of any fees herein provided or hereaftét phall be subordinate and inferior to all
mortgages, deeds of trust or any other financinggations on any of the premises or real
properties of the Community, to secure loans oaades made to Community or its successors,
now outstanding or made in the future, and subatdinand inferior to all amendments,
modifications, and replacements, or refunds theraofl Resident agrees that, upon request of
Community, or the holder of any such instrumenat the or she will execute and deliver any
documents which are alleged to be necessary oriregquo effect or evidence such
subordination.

b.)_Rights to Personal Property of Loydsccommodation.

As in the case of real estate, Resident has na, rigle, or interest, legal,
equitable, or otherwise in or to any part of thespaal property owned by Community, including
carpets, stove, refrigerator, dishwasher, washdr diger, telephone equipment, garage door
opener and fixtures, etc. in the Living Accommodatieven if up-graded at Resident's cost and,
also, all furniture, furnishings and fixtures ih@mmon areas and facilities.

c.) _Responsibility for Damages.

Any loss or damage to real or personal propertommunity, caused by the
negligence (as determined by the Community) of ¢Redi or Resident's guests, shall be charged
to and paid for by Resident. The Community, instde discretion, may deduct such loss or
damage from the Resident’s Security Deposit. Snhyilaf any negligence of any of the above-
mentioned damages results in injury, illness ofdamage to, any other Resident, Community
assumes no responsibility therefore, and Residergbly releases and discharges Community
from any injury or damage to Resident's personapgnty caused by the fault or negligence of
other Residents of the Community, or their guests.

d.) _Policy Regarding Pets.

Resident may have a common household pet as pedniit the Pet Policy and
Agreement that must be signed by all residentsingsto keep a pet. No more than one dog or
cat is permitted at a time, and the number and ¢tymeher kinds of household pets may also be
restricted at the discretion of the Community ascdbed in the Pet Policy and Agreement.

e.)_Responsibility of Protection of REsit's Property.

Community shall not be responsible for the lossaoly personal property
belonging to Resident due to theft, fire, or anyses unless said property shall be specifically
entrusted in writing to the care and control of themmunity accompanied by an itemized
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appraisal, and then only for lack of ordinary ctoesafeguard and account for such property.
Resident agrees Community is not responsible fosgpal injury to other Residents or guests
within Resident's Living Accommodation, and shallvé the responsibility, at his or her own
expense, of providing and maintaining a standaoghgmty and liability insurance policy (tenant
homeowners), and to file a copy of said policy ertificate of insurance detailing the coverage
with the Community. If Resident is no longer albeotcupy the Living Accommodation, or has
expired, Community shall have the right, at Residegxpense, to remove, within a period not to
exceed thirty (30) days, all personal property esigent from his or her Living Accommodation
and to store the same, at Resident's expense sgkdlfrithe property shall be stored in a
commercial storage warehouse or commercial stofageity, Community shall have no
responsibility for such property after it has bgeaced in storage and Resident, or Resident's
estate, shall be liable for all storage fees iremlirrResident shall, upon moving to the
Community, designate to whom such property shoeldiéivered upon Resident’s inability to
occupy Living Accommodation or upon death.

13. Right of Entry.

The Resident recognizes and accepts the Commsimigyfit and responsibility to
enter Living Accommodation, from time to time, inder to carry out the purpose and intent of
this Agreement. The purposes for which such emizy be made include but are not limited to
a) performance of scheduled housekeeping dutiesedponse to the medical alert system c)
response to the fire alarm system d) situationshich the Resident is reported missing or as
having not responded to calls, and f) maintenantlee Community recognizes the Resident’s
right to privacy and the Community’s responsibilitylimit entry to the Living Accommodation
for emergencies, maintenance and housekeeping a®rket forth in this paragraph. The
Community will make an annual inspection of theng unit and reserves the right to make
additional inspections as needed at the sole disoref the Community.

14. Arrangement for Guardianship and Residentst&s

a.)_Power of Attorney.

Resident agrees to execute, prior to occupancgereral power of attorney
appointing an attorney-in-fact, whose power of raty shall contain a clause providing that the
power of attorney shall survive the incompetencehaf Resident. A copy of said power of
attorney shall be provided to the Community.

b.) _Will.
If not previously made, Resident agrees, withiree¢h(3) months after the date of

this Agreement, to make a will providing for dispbsf his or her furniture and possessions at
Community and providing the appointment of an Exexcaof his or her estate.
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c.)_Other Arrangements.

The Resident agrees to provide the Community with following information
within ninety (90) days after the Occupancy Datdvance Directives, name and address of the
funeral director with whom Resident has made aearents, the location of the Resident’s Will,
the name and address of the Resident’'s lawyer aedutr, the names and addresses of any
banks trust officers, etc., information necessarcamplete a death certificate, and whom to
notify in case of death, including the person tcomhthe Resident’s personal property is to be
released.

15. Guest Privileges.

Resident has the right to have guests visit higeorLiving Accommaodation, but
such visits shall be limited to thirty (30) daysr pear, unless the Community grants special
permission for longer periods of stay.

16. Transferability.

The rights and privileges of Resident under thigre@ment to the Living
Accommodation are personal to the Resident andotaom transferred or assigned by act of
Resident, or by any proceeding at law, or otherwfsany person, other than the person who has
executed this Agreement, commences to live in Res$®l Living Accommodation without
following proper procedures as established by tlem@unity and exercised through the
Community administration, Community shall have tight to terminate this Agreement.

17. Community's Policy Regarding Subsequent Maeriaf Resident or Subsequent Joint
Occupancy with a Resident.

In the event that Resident marries a non-resiadrite occupying the Living
Accommodation and desires that his or her spouseesthe Living Accommodation, such
spouse must comply with the entrance procedursstdsrth in this Agreement. Likewise, in the
event that a non-resident applies to occupy a bivilccommodation jointly with a current
Resident, such non-resident must comply with thaaone procedures as set forth in this
Agreement. In the event such spouse or non-resglsking joint occupancy is accepted as a
Resident, this Agreement shall be terminated aredusd of the Advance Fee as provided herein
shall be paid to Resident. Resident and Residgptisse, or joint Resident as the case may be,
shall thereupon enter into a new Resident Agreemeatshall pay the then-current Advance Fee
and Monthly Fee for the unit. In the event suchusgoor non resident seeking joint occupancy is
not accepted as a Resident, Resident may terntimat&greement pursuant to its provisions and
receive a refund as provided herein.
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18. Notices.

All notices to be given in accordance with thisrégment are considered properly
given if and when delivered personally or sent lajlras follows:

As to Community: As to Resident:

Administrator At Resident's last known Address
Brooks Estates or

209 Roberts Road Resident’'s Community Address

Pittston, PA 18640

19. Miscellaneous Provisions.

a.)_Entire Agreement.

This Agreement, together with the application fdhat includes a financial statement and
medical records constitute the entire agreementdezt the Community and Resident. Resident
warrants that all statements made herein are wdecarrect. Community is not liable and shall
not be bound by any statements, representatioqsparises made by any person representing or
purporting to represent Community, unless suctestanhts, representations or promises are set
forth in this Agreement.

b.) _Rules and Regulations.

Resident will observe all rules and regulationg tha Community shall from time to time
adopt for the convenience, comfort, safety and Wweilhg of all Residents and the Community
which shall upon adoption form a part of this Agnemt. Resident does hereby understand that a
violation of such rules and regulations, includihg Pet Policy, may result in termination of this
Agreement. The Community reserves the right to tdoglicies, procedures, rules and
regulations regarding residency not inconsisterth whe provisions of this Agreement, and the
Resident agrees to abide by such policies, proesduiles and regulations.

c.) _Invalidity or Severability.

If any portion of this Agreement shall, for any sea, be held to be invalid or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction that it is sougdiat be enforced, such invalidity and
unenforceability shall not affect any other prowersiof this Agreement and it shall be construed
as if such invalid or unenforceable provision wengtted.

d.)_Amendments or Modifications.

This Agreement may be amended or modified only iiting executed by an authorized
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official of the Community and by Resident.

e.)_Binding Effect.

This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inurdhe,benefit of the Community and the
Resident, as well as their respective successssgjres and personal representatives.

f.) _Schedules Attached.

Attached hereto idlotice of Right to Rescindfor use by Resident. Also attached hereto
and marked Schedule "A" is a list of items thatenbeen purchased and installed in, or for, the
Resident's Living Accommodation at the request e$iBent along with the cost of such items.
Attached hereto and marked Schedule "B" is a sdbediall property included in Living
Accommodation as well as the identity thereof. gltied and marked Schedule "C" is a list of
medical and other services along with the feesgdsafor such services available to Resident.

g.)_Liability for Health Care Costs.

The Community does not undertake to provide heedite of any nature under this
Agreement and therefore will not be liable to amglth care provider for services rendered to
Resident.

h.) _Right to Organize, Residents Asdommeor Residents Council.

Residents living in the Community shall have thghti of self-organization. The
Community through its Board of Directors or throughdesignated representative shall hold
annual meetings with the Residents of the facfbtythe purpose of free discussion of subjects
that may include income, expenditures, and findmogtters as they apply to the Community and
proposed changes in policies, programs, and sarvidé Residents shall receive at least seven
(7) days notice of each annual meeting.

i.) _Changes Because of Regulatory Agemnci

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemehe Community shall have the
right to alter your Living Accommodation to meeethequirements of law, the regulations of
regulatory agencies, or other duly constituted @ities or agencies.

J.) _Designation of and Delegation by Administrator.

The Community may, from time to time, designate Addministrator to carry out the
operating policies and procedures and to conduet dperations of the Community. It is
understood that any authority, or responsibilitiyeg by this Agreement to the Community's
Administrator may be delegated by him or her to ang or more members of the Community’s
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staff.
k.) _Gratuities.

Residents living in the Community shall not givey éips or gratuities to employees of the
Community, whether in cash or otherwise, for anyise required to be provided by the
Community to the Resident pursuant to this Agredroepursuant to law.

[.) _Acknowledgment.

Resident acknowledges reading this agreement aed/neg a copy thereof.

m.) _No Discrimination.

It is understood and agreed that the Community tdResidents without regard to race,
religion, color, sex, national origin, sexual oteiron, marital status or sponsor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlgiseement the day and
year first above written.

Date:

Resident

Resident

UNITED METHODIST HOMES

Brooks Estates

BY:
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BROOKS ESTATES

Notice of Right to Rescind

DATE RESCISSION PERIOD BEGINS:

You may rescind and terminate your Resident Agezgrwithout penalty or
forfeiture within seven (7) days of the above d&i@u are not required to move into the
Brooks Estates continuing care community beforeettg@ration of this seven (7) day period.
No other agreement or statement you sign shalltitotesa waiver of your right to rescind
your Agreement within the seven (7) day period.

To rescind your Resident Agreement, mail or delavsigned and dated copy
of this notice, or any other dated written notietter, telegram, or FAX stating your desire to
rescind to Brooks Estates, United Methodist Horae209 Roberts Road, Pittston,
Pennsylvania, 18640 not later than midnight of

Brooks Estates

DATE: BY:

Pursuant to this notice, | hereby cancel my Residgneement.

Dated Signed

Prospective Resident’s Signature
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BROOKS ESTATES

Schedule A

List of Items Purchased and Installed at Request dResident

Number Ite Description Amount

Date:

Resident

Resident

UNITED METHODIST HOMES

Brooks Estates

BY:
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BROOKS ESTATES

Schedule B

List of Personal Property Provided By Community

Ite Number of ltems/Description Serial Number

Stove

Refrigerator

Microwave

Dishwasher

Washer

Dryer

Garbage Disposal

Smoke Detectors

Automatic Garage Door
Opener

Wall-to-Wall Carpeting

Draperies

Telephones (2)

Other Items:
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BROOKS ESTATES

Schedule C

List of Services Available to Resident at AdditionaCharge

Service

Barber and Beauty

Physical, Occupational or Speech Therapy

Dentistry

Podiatry

Optometry

X-Ray Services

Laboratory Services

Medical Supplies

Psychiatric Counseling

Overnight Accommodations for Guests
Resident Meals

Guest Meals

Housekeeping

Nursing Care

Personal Care or Assisted Living
Limited, scheduled local transportation

Other:

Fee/Charge

Standard fees at United Mesthétbmes Wesley Village Campus facilities
Stanfgaglat United Methodist Homes Wesley Village Casrjagilities
Directly billed by third-party provide
Directly billed by third-party provider
Directly billed by third-party provider
Directly billed by third-partyqwider
Directly billed by third-pagrovider
Standard fees at United Methddanes Wesley Village Campus facilities
Directly billed by thirdwby provider
Standard &émited Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campudlifees
Standard fees at United Methothstes Wesley Village Campus facilities
Standard fees at United MethodishétoWesley Village Campus facilities
Standard fees at United Methodisaés Wesley Village Campus facilities
Standard fees at United Method@shes Wesley Village Campus facilities
Standard feéied Methodist Homes Wesley Village Campus faed

Standaatfat United Methodist Homes Wesley Village Canfpaiities
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